Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Ann Sweeney , tel 020 8547 4629
email: ann.sweeney@kingston.gov.uk

Published on 4 March 2019

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
Date:

Tuesday 12 March 2019

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

Guildhall, Kingston upon Thames
Members of the Committee
Councillor Yogan Yoganathan

(Chair)

Councillor Kim Bailey

(Vice Chair)

Councillor Zain Abbas
Councillor Rowena Bass
Councillor Jaesung Ha

Independent Member

Paul Eardley

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR code
with your smartphone.

2

Meeting information
Accessibility


All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. Where there are
stairs, a lift or stairlift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.
Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.
For people who are deaf or have hearing impairments, there is an induction loop (this may
only be available in the first 2 or 3 rows).






A large print copy of the agenda can be requested in advance.

Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If you require assistance,
please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the building.
Recording of the meeting
This meeting will be recorded and the recording will be available on the web site
(www.kingston.gov.uk) with the agenda and minutes.
Filming
Residents and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so but are asked to
give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people on being filmed.
Phrases used at meetings
Like all organisations, the Council has its own ‘jargon’. On the agenda and during debates
you will see/hear the following phrases:


Interests - Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the
agenda. Interests may be personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interests declared,
it might be necessary for the Councillor to leave the meeting. The detail on interests is in
Part 5A of the Constitution - Members’ Code of Conduct.

Minutes
The minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record who said
what during the debate.

3

AGENDA
Apologies for absence
Declarations of Interest
Question Time
Up to 15 minutes are available at the start of the meeting to deal with questions which
have been submitted to the Chair from members of the public. Questions should be
submitted in writing before the meeting or handed in at the start of the meeting on the
green forms provided. Where a full reply cannot be given orally at the meeting, a written
reply will be sent to the questioner and members of the Committee.
Any questions directed to the external auditors – Grant Thornton - on which it is not
possible to give an immediate response will be noted and responded to in writing.
1.

Minutes
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 21 November 2018.

2.

External Audit Plan and Pension Fund Plan 18/19

Appendix A

3.

Annual Certification Letter

Appendix B

4.

Summary Corporate Risk Register Update

Appendix C

5.

Internal Audit Update

Appendix D

6.

Internal Audit Charter and Strategy and Internal Audit Plan
2019/20

Appendix E

7.

Date of Next Meeting and dates for Municipal Year 2019/20
Next meeting Thursday 02 May 19
2019/20
Tuesday 30 Jul 19
Thursday 24 Oct 19
Thursday 23 Jan 20
Thursday 30 Apr 20

4
8.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
The following resolution is included as a standard item which will only be relevant if
any exempt matter is to be considered at the meeting for which the Committee wish
to resolve to exclude the press and public:
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as
defined in paragraph x of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed and
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

9.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2019
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Pension Fund

Appendix A

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

A1

February 2019

Contents
Section

Page

1.

Introduction

3

2.

Headlines

4

3.

Key matters impacting our audit approach of the Authority

5

4.

Key matters impacting our audit approach of the Fund

6

5.

Group audit scope and risk assessment

7

6.

Significant risks identified

8
10

8.

Other matters

11

9.

Materiality

12

10. Value for Money arrangements

13

11. Audit logistics & fees

15

12. Independence & non-audit services

16

A2

7. Other risks

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the
Authority and Fund or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written
consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members
is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

2

Introduction
Our Team

Purpose

Iain Murray, Engagement Lead
T 020 7728 3328
E iain.g.murray@uk.gt.com

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the
statutory audits of the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames (‘You’) and Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames Pension Fund “the Fund” for those charged with
governance.
Respective responsibilities

E paul.j.jacklin@uk.gt.com

Scope of our audits

Paul Jacklin, Senior Audit Manager

A3

T 020 7728 3263

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin
and end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities
are also set out in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities
issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for
appointing us as auditor of the Authority and the Fund. We draw your attention to
both of these documents on the PSAA website.
The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing
an opinion on the:
•

Council, Group and Pension Fund’s financial statements that have been
prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance
(the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee); and

•

Your Value for Money arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in your use of resources.

Keith Mungadzi, Assistant Manager
T 020 7728 2393
E keith.mungadzi@uk.gt.com

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit,
Governance and Standards Committee of your responsibilities.
Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the your business and
is risk based.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

3

Headlines
Group Accounts

You are required to prepare group financial statements that consolidate the financial information of Achieving for Children Community Interest Company.

Significant risks

Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been identified as follows:
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
•

Management override of controls

•

Valuation of property, plant and equipment being materially misstated

•

Valuation of pension fund net liability being materially misstated

Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Pension Fund
•

Management override of controls

We will communicate significant findings in these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings (ISA 260)
Report.
We have determined planning materiality to be £8.7m for the group and for the Authority (PY £8.7m), which equates to 2% of your prior year gross expenditure
for the year. We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance.
Clearly trivial has been set at £436k (PY £436k).

Materiality – Pension
Fund

We have determined materiality at the planning stage of our audit to be £7.7m for the Fund, which equates to 1% of your net assets for the year.

Value for Money
arrangements
(Authority Only)

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following VFM significant risks:

A4

Materiality - Authority

Audit logistics

We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has
been set at £385k (PY £385k).

•

Budget Management

•

Savings plans and medium term financial planning

•

Brexit

Our interim visit will take place in January and February 2019 and our final visit will take place in June and July. Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and our
Audit Findings Report.
Our fee for the audit will be £85,077 (PY: £110,490) for your audit and £16,170 (PY: £21,000) for the Fund, subject to you delivering a good set of financial
statements and comprehensive and accurate supporting working papers, and responding to audit queries promptly.

Independence

We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are
able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

4

Key matters impacting our audit
Key business risks
Your current financial position

Your future plans

For 2018/19, you set a balanced budget (net revenue budget of £130m a £1.7m decrease
from prior years) incorporating of £4.1m inflationary assumptions and £13.8m of growth
which included growth in Adult Social Care and looked after children. There is also
investment in the “No Stone Unturned” programme, largely to cover the financing costs of
your investment properties. The budget included a challenging savings programme of
£22m.

In 2018/19 your funding from central government via
revenue support grant ceased and you joined the rest of
London in a pilot to pool and retain business rates. This
means you forego a final year of grant funding in favour
of retaining (across the pool) 100% of business rate
growth. The reliance on business rates means you are
Your current forecast for 2018/19 is an overspend of approximately £1m, the key drivers of dependent, to a degree, on the performance and growth
of the local economy.
which are:
•

Ongoing pressures in relation to Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children and
Special Educational Needs (SEN) Transport within the Achieving for Children budget.

To address the underlying challenges in your financial
position you are pursuing opportunities to:

•

.
A shortfall of income in relation to new investment
in commercial property which has
not yet proceeded.



Changes in senior management and
Members
The local elections in May 2018
resulted in a change in administration;
30 of the Council’s 48 Councillors are
newly elected. You have recently
appointed a new Chief Executive.
You are looking to provide a period of
stability for the Council following a
challenging 12 months.

improve demand management across all services

 increase customer and client income
Delays in delivering expected savings from Commissioning and Contract management.  increase commercial activities, and
Expenditure on services funded by Dedicated Schools Grant continue to overspend. The
 make prudent investments.
accumulated deficit is forecast to be £13m by the end of the 2018/19 year. In 2018/19 you The current economic uncertainty increases the risks
received £4.3m additional schools funding (Department of Education advance £3m and
associated with income from your investment properties.
disapplication from the Schools Block £1.3m). Funding at this level will not be available in
The government has also significantly tightened the
2019/20. At month 6 the forecast overspend in the schools budget is £2.262m. You have
regulatory framework for local authority investments.
been developing plans to address these issues and without significant changes to the
You will need to take careful account of this changing
provision or funding of education for children with special education needs and disabilities, landscape in considering any future opportunities.
the accumulated overspend could reach £46m by 2022.
•

A5

Our response
•

We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources as part of our work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

•

We will consider whether your financial position leads to material uncertainty about the going concern of your group and will review related disclosures in the financial statements.

•

We will continue to engage with Members and Senior Officers to assess how you are performing in addressing your challenges.

•

We will consider your arrangements for supporting your savings programmes. We will review the recovery boards progress in working with Achieving for Children and reducing
overspends on the Dedicated Schools Grant.

•

We will follow up the previous year recommendations in our VfM work.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

5

Key matters impacting our audit of the Fund
External Factors

Internal Factors

Changes to the CIPFA 2018/19 Accounting
Code

Introduces a new provision for employers to
receive credit for any surplus assets in a fund
upon ceasing to be a Scheme employer. This
could potentially lead to material impacts on
funding arrangements and the need for updated
Funding Strategy Statements.

The most significant changes relate to the
adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. In
practice, IFRS 9 is anticipated to have limited
impact for pension funds as most assets and
liabilities held are already classed as fair value
through profit and loss.

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP)

The Pensions Regulator (tPR)

•

Pension funds are continuing to work through
.
the GMP reconciliation process.

•

In January 2018 the government extended its
“interim solution” for indexation and
equalisation for public service pension
schemes until April 2021. Currently the view is
that the October 2018 High Court ruling in
respect of GMP equalisation is therefore not
likely to have an impact upon the LGPS.

tPRs Corporate Plan Corporate for 2018-2021
includes three new Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs) directly related to public service pension
schemes and TPR has chosen the LGPS as a
cohort for proactive engagement throughout
2018 and 2019.

Pooling
The Fund remains committed to pooling its assets with the London Collective
Investment Vehicle (LCIV) where suitable mandates become available. To date the
Baillie Gifford £35m, Pyrford £79m and Ruffer £35m mandates have transitioned
into LCIV with the aim of achieving cost efficiency and gaining access to a wider
range of asset classes.
The LCIV launched 3 new funds in the last year and have identified a demand for a
fixed income range of products and will announce plans on infrastructure funds
property assets next year.
Officers are working with Aon Hewitt to identify options for possible fixed income
investment options.

A6

SI 493/2018 – LGPS (Amendment) Regulations
2018

Our response
•

We will continue to monitor the position in
respect of GMP equalisation and reconciliation.
For pension funds the immediate impact is
expected to be largely administrative rather
than financial.

•

•
•

We will keep you informed of changes to the financial
reporting requirements for 2018/19 through on-going
discussions and invitations to our technical update
workshops.
As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will
consider whether your financial statements reflect the
financial reporting changes in the 2018/19 CIPFA Code.
We will keep under review any interaction the Fund has with
tPR and tailor our audit approach where necessary.

•

Whilst we do not consider the transfer of assets to the pool as
a significant risk we will tailor our approach to gain assurance
in respect of the completeness and accuracy of the
transactions should you take up any of the future mandates
utilised by LCIV.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

6

Group audit scope and risk assessment
In accordance with ISA (UK) 600, as your group auditor we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
components and the consolidation process to express an opinion on whether the group financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
the applicable financial reporting framework. The group audit does not include the Pension Fund.
Component

Individually
Significant?

Audit Scope

Royal Borough of Yes
Kingston upon
Thames

Achieving for
Children

No

Risks identified

Planned audit approach

•

Management override of controls

•

Valuation of property, plant and
equipment

Full scope UK statutory audit performed by Grant
Thornton UK LLP

•

Valuation of pension fund net liability

No specific risks identified

Review of outputs from statutory audit of AfC
performed by Grant Thornton.

Key changes within the group:


There have been no significant changes within the group

A7

Review of disclosures against requirements.

Audit scope
 Audit of the financial information of the component using component materiality
 Audit of one more classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures
relating to significant risks of material misstatement of the group financial
statements
 Review of component’s financial information
 Specified audit procedures relating to significant risks of material misstatement
of the group financial statements
 Analytical procedures at group level

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

7

Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk,
the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk

Risk relates to

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The risk that revenue includes
fraudulent transactions

Council and
Fund

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable
presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due
to the improper recognition of revenue.
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor
concludes that there is no risk of material
misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue
recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of your
and the Fund’s revenue streams, we have determined that the risk of fraud
arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:
•

there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition;

•

opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited; and

•

the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including
yourselves, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for you.
Council and
Fund

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable
presumed risk that the risk of management override of controls is present in all entities. The group
and Fund face external scrutiny of its spending
and this could potentially place management
under undue pressure in terms of how they report
performance.
We therefore identified management override of
control, in particular journals, management
estimates and transactions outside the course of
business as a significant risk for you and the
Fund, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:

A8

Management over-ride of
controls

•

evaluate the design effectiveness of management controls over
journals;

•

analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting high
risk unusual journals;

•

test unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft
accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration;

•

gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical
judgements applied by management and consider their
reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and

•

evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies,
estimates or significant unusual transactions.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

8

Significant risks identified
Risk

Risk relates to Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of
land and
buildings

Council

We will:

You revalue your land and buildings on an
annual basis to ensure that the carrying value is
not materially different from the current value or
fair value (for surplus assets) at the financial
statements date. This valuation represents a
significant estimate by management in the
financial statements due to the size of the
numbers involved (£913m) and the sensitivity of
this estimate to changes in key assumptions.
Management have engaged the services of a
valuer to estimate the current value as at 31
March 2019.

•

evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the
instructions issued to the valuation experts and the scope of their work;

•

evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;

•

write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuations were carried out;

•

challenge the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and
consistency with our understanding;

•

test, on a sample basis, revaluations made during the year to ensure they have been input
correctly into your asset register and financial statements; and

•

evaluate the assumptions made by management for any assets not revalued during the year
and how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to
current value.

Valuation of
the pension
fund net
liability

Council

A9

We therefore identified valuation of land and
buildings, particularly revaluations and
impairments, as a significant risk, which was one
of the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement.
Your pension fund net liability, as reflected in
your balance sheet as the net defined benefit
liability, represents a significant estimate in the
financial statements and group accounts.

We will:
•

update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to
ensure that your pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design
of the associated controls;

The pension fund net liability is considered a
significant estimate due to the size of the
numbers involved (£219 million in your balance
sheet) and the sensitivity of the estimate to
changes in key assumptions.

•

evaluate the instructions issued by management o their management expert (an actuary) for
this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

•

assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your
pension fund valuation;

•

assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by you to the actuary to
estimate the liability;

•

test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the
core financial statements with the actuarial report; and

•

undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by
reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any
additional procedures suggested within the report.

We therefore identified valuation of your pension
fund net liability as a significant risk, which was
one of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

9

Other risks identified
Risk
Valuation of Level 2
Investments

Risk relates
to
Reason for risk identification
Fund

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

While level 2 investments do not carry the same level of inherent We will:
risks associated with level 3 investments (of which the Fund
• gain an understanding of the Fund’s process for valuing Level 2
currently do not hold), there is still an element of judgement
investments and evaluate the design of the associated controls;
involved in their valuation as their very nature is such that they
• assess the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what
cannot be valued directly.
assurance management has over the year end valuations provided for
these types of investments;
We therefore identified the valuation of the Fund’s Level 2
investments as an other risk

agree the reconciliation of information provided by the individual fund
manager’s custodian and the Pension Scheme's own records and seek
explanations for variances;

•

request year-end confirmations from investment managers and
custodian; and

•

for any direct property investments agree values in total to valuer's
report and undertake steps to gain reliance on the valuer as an expert.

A10

•

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report in July 2019.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

10

Other matters
Other work

Other material balances and transactions

The Fund is administered by you, and the Fund’s financial statements form part of your
financial statements.

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each
material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material
balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will
not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Therefore, in addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a
number of other audit responsibilities in respect of you and the Fund, as follows:
•

We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement and any other
information published alongside your financial statements to check that they are
consistent with your financial statements and the Fund on which we give an opinion,
and consistent with our knowledge of you.
We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual
Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued by CIPFA.

•

We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

•

We carry out work to satisfy ourselves on the consistency of the pension fund
financial statements included in the pension fund annual report with the audited
Fund accounts.

•

We consider our other duties under legislation and the Code, as and when required,
including:

•

•

Giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about yours or Fund’s
2018/19 financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections
received in relation to the 2018/19 financial statements;

•

Issue of a report in the public interest or written recommendations you or
Fund under section 24 of the Act, copied to the Secretary of State.

•

Application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary
to law under Section 28 or for a judicial review under Section 31 of the Act;
or

•

Issuing an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Act.

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is
a material uncertainty about the group or the Fund’s 's ability to continue as a going
concern” (ISA (UK) 570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern
assumption and evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements.

A11

•

Going concern

We certify completion of your audit.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

11

Materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Matter

Description

Planned audit response



Calculation and determination

•

We have determined planning materiality (financial statement materiality
determined at the planning stage of the audit) based on professional judgment in
the context of our knowledge of you and the Fund, including consideration of
factors such as stakeholder expectations, financial stability and reporting
requirements for the financial statements.

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the
gross expenditure of the group and you for the financial year. In the prior year we
used the same benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage of our audit is £8.7m
(PY £8.7m) for the group and the Authority, which equates to 2% of your prior year
gross expenditure on cost of services.

•

For the Fund, we have determined financial statement materiality based on a
proportion of the Fund’s net assets. In the prior year we used the same benchmark.
Our materiality at the planning stage is £7.7m (PY £7.7m) which equates to 1% of
your actual net assets for the year ended 31 March 2018.

•

We have not identified any balances where we will apply lower materiality levels.
We will undertake testing on senior officers remuneration which is below the
materiality levels as these are considered sensitive disclosures.

•

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement,
we become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a
different determination of materiality.

•

In the context of the group and you, we propose that an individual difference could
normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £436k (PY £436k).

We determine planning materiality in order to:
estimate the tolerable level of misstatement in the financial statements



assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests



calculate sample sizes and



assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements in the
financial statements.



Other factors



Reassessment of materiality



Matters we will report to the Audit and Governance Committee

A12



An item does not necessarily have to be large to be considered to have a material
effect on the financial statements. We design our procedures to detect errors in
specific accounts at a lower level of precision which we deem to be relevant to
stakeholders.

Our assessment of materiality is kept under review throughout the audit process.

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are
material to our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless
•
report to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee any unadjusted
misstatements of lesser amounts, other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’, to
•
those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that
are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether
judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.

In the context of the Fund, we propose that an individual difference could normally
be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £385k (PY £385k).
If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course
of the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to
the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee to assist it in fulfilling its
governance responsibilities.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

12

Value for Money arrangements
Background to our VFM approach
The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work in
November 2017. The guidance states that for Local Government bodies,
excluding Pension Funds, auditors are required to give a conclusion on
whether you have proper arrangements in place to secure value for money.
The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:
“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed
decisions and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”
This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks – page 1 of 2
Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that proper
arrangements are not in place at the Council to deliver value for money.
Budget Management
You are currently projecting a £1m overspend on the 2018/19 budget. Should the
position worsen then this will increase the pressure into 2019/20.
In response to this risk we will:
•
•
•
•
•

Assess your understanding of, and responses to, the pressures and causal factors
contributing to the 2018/19 overspend.
Consider whether you have adequate arrangements to manage those pressures and
to secure a sustainable financial position.
Review your plans to respond to pressures within AfC and the Growth Directorate.
Review the recovery boards progress in managing overspends within AfC and the
Dedicated Schools Grant including reviewing the SEND Transformation programme.
Consider your approach towards the use of reserves.

A13

Informed
decision
making

Savings and medium term financial planning
At the time of setting the 2018/19 budget you had a £5.2m budget gap for 2019/20
which increases to £16.8m by 2021/22. You are working to close the gaps via identifying
future savings and increasing your income.
In response to this risk we will:
•

Value for
Money
arrangements
criteria
Working
with partners
& other third
parties

•
•
Sustainable
resource
deployment

•

Consider your revised arrangements to identify and deliver savings and efficiencies
to support a sustainable medium term financial position.
Consider the feasibility of planned savings and the assessed risk of achievement.
Review the arrangements for identifying and monitoring risk, and taking appropriate
action in the event of non-realisation of planned savings.
Assess how well the medium term financial plan reflects planned timescales for the
delivery of savings from your cross cutting approach, and how well aligned the
medium term financial plan is with the planned financial benefits anticipated.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

13

Value for Money arrangements continued
Significant VFM risks – page 2 of 2
Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that proper
arrangements are not in place at the Council to deliver value for money.
Brexit
With the UK due to leave the European Union on 29 March 2019, there will be national and local
implications resulting from Brexit that will impact on you and which you will need to plan for.
In response to this risk we will:
•

Review your arrangements and plans to mitigate any risks on Brexit. Our review will focus on
areas such as workforce planning, supply chain analysis and impacts on finances including
investment and borrowing as well as any potential impact on the valuation of your assets.

A14

Working
with partners
& other third
parties

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

14

Audit logistics, team & fees
Interim audit
January and
February 2019
Planning and
risk assessment

Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee

Audit, Governance and Standards
Committee
12 March 2019

July 2019

September 2019

Year end audit
June and July 2019
Audit
Plan

Iain Murray, Engagement Lead
Iain will be the main point of contact for the Chief Executive, statutory officers
and Members. Iain will share his wealth of knowledge and experience across
the sector providing challenge, sharing good practice, discussing pragmatic
solutions and acting as a sounding board with Senior Management and the
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. Iain will ensure our audit is
tailored specifically to you and is delivered efficiently. Iain will review all reports
and the team’s work focussing his time on the key risk areas to your audit.

Audit
Findings
Report

Audit
opinions

Annual
Audit
Letter

Audit fees
The planned audit fees are £85,077 (PY: 110,490) for the financial statements audit of the
group, and £16,170 (PY: £21,000) for the financial statements audit of the Fund, completed
under the Code, which are inline with the scale fees published by PSAA. In setting your fee,
we have assumed that the scope of the audits, do not significantly change.

Our requirements
Paul Jacklin, Senior Audit Manager
Paul will work with the senior members of the finance and executive teams,
ensuring early delivery of testing and agreement of accounting issues on a
timely basis. Paul will attend Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
meetings, undertake reviews of the team’s work and draft reports, ensuring
they remain clear, concise and understandable to all. Paul will work with
Internal Audit to secure efficiencies and avoid duplication, providing assurance
for your Annual Governance Statement.

A15

Where we are required to respond to requests received from other auditors of other bodies
for assurance in respect of information held by the Fund and provided to the actuary to
support their individual IAS 19 calculations these will be billed in addition to the audit fee on
a case by case basis.
To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, you must ensure
that:
•

All audit queries in our interim and final work are responded to in a timely manner and all
required samples provided to enable completion of the interim audit prior to the March
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.

•

The draft accounts are provided to us by 31 May and are fully accurate with minimal
errors. Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts and other working papers are
provided to us by 31 May and in accordance with the agreed upon information request
list. This must include all notes, the narrative report and AGS.

Keith Mungadzi, Assistant Manager

•

Keith will support Paul in his work to ensure the early delivery of audit testing
and lead on a number of complex accounting issues. He will oversee the
implementation of Grant Thornton's new audit methodology and perform
reviews of the team’s work.

The agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are reconciled to
the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples. All supporting
schedules are clearly presented and agree to figures in the accounts.

•

Key management and accounting staff identified in our information request list are
available throughout the duration of our audit visits to help us locate information and to
provide explanations.

•

All audit queries are resolved promptly and fully and within agreed timescales.

If any of the above requirements are not met, we reserve the right to postpone our audit visit
and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.
© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

15

Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence
Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm
or covered persons relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we make
additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters. We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are
required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the
Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial
statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 and PSAA’s Terms of Appointment which
set out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies.
Other services provided by Grant Thornton
For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Authority and the Fund. The following other services were identified.
Service

£

Threats

Safeguards

Audit related
TBC

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for
this work for 2017/18 was £2,500 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £85,077 and in particular relative to
Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Certification of Teachers’
Pension return

TBC

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for
this work for 2017/18 was £4,200 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £85,077 and in particular relative to
Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Certification of Housing
Benefits claim

TBC

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for
this work for 2017/18 was £28,802 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £85,077 and in particular relative to
Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level

A16

Certification of Housing
capital receipts grant

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are
consistent with the group’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Audit and Governance Committee. Any changes and full
details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included
in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit. None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.
© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

16

A17

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk
© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Kingston Pension Fund | 2018/19

B1

Appendix B
Grant Thornton UK LLP
30 Finsbury Square London
EC2A 1AG
T +44 (0)20 7383 5100
www.grant-thornton.co.uk

Sarah Ireland
Director of Corporate & Commercial (S151 Officer)
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1EU
13 February 2019

Dear Sarah

Certification work for Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Council
for the year ended 31 March 2018
We are required to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim submitted by the Royal Borough of
Kingston upon Thames ('the Council'). This certification typically takes place six to nine months after the
claim period and represents a final but important part of the process to confirm the Council's entitlement
to funding.
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gave the Secretary of State power to transfer Audit
Commission responsibilities to other bodies. Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) took on the
transitional responsibilities for HB COUNT issued by the Audit Commission in February 2015.
We have certified the Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the financial year 2017/18 relating to subsidy
claimed of £71.6 million. Further details are set out in Appendix A.
Our approach requires that we review issues identified in the prior year and undertake further testing
where appropriate, to determine the extent that they continued into the 2017/18 period.
No errors were identified from our testing and we have certified the claim with no amendments.
The indicative fee for 2017/18 for the Council was based on the actual 2015/16 certification fees,
reflecting the amount of work required by the auditor to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim that
year. The indicative scale fee set by PSAA for the Council for 2017/18 was £28,802. This is set out in
more detail in Appendix B.
Yours sincerely

Grant Thornton UK LLP

B2

Appendix A - Details of claims and returns certified for 2017/18

Claim or
return

Value

Amended?

Amendment
value

Qualified?

Comments

Housing
benefits
subsidy claim

£71,588,360

No

N/A

No

None.

Grant Thornton UK LLP.

2

B3

Appendix B: Fees for 2017/18 certification work

Claim or return

2015/16
fee (£)

2017/18
indicative
fee (£)

2017/18
actual fee
(£)

Variance
(£)

Explanation for variances

Housing benefits
subsidy claim
(BEN01)

£28,802

£28,802

£28,802

£Nil

N/A

Grant Thornton UK LLP.

3

C1

Appendix C

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
12 March 2019
Corporate Risk Register and Risk Monitoring
Report by the Director Communities

Purpose
To provide the Committee with an update on high priority risks identified by directorate
management teams and the progress of the review of corporate risk register
arrangements.
Recommendation
It is recommended that:
1.

the updates on the high priority risks are noted;

2.

SLT will review the risk register on a quarterly basis. Committee should determine
the frequency of how often they receive the risk register for scrutiny. It is
recommended that this occurs a minimum of every 6 months and a maximum of
quarterly.

3.

the updates on the risks for further review, selected at the meeting in November,
and the following recommendations are noted;
Emergency Planning - to note
a)

the recent improvements made to emergency planning resilience in Kingston
Council and further improvements in the pipeline.

b)

the actions to introduce the London Emergency Planning 2020
standardisation programme and resilience assurance programme across
Kingston Council, with the implementation programme on target to have the
required arrangements in place by September 2019.

c)

that a more detailed report on emergency planning resilience will
be brought to Community Engagement Committee in the spring 2019.

Brexit preparedness - to note
d)

the work underway across the council and with local partners to prepare for
a ‘no deal’ Brexit.

e)

that a more detailed, follow-up report will be taken to the Community
Engagement Committee - which has responsibility for contingency planning three months after the UK has left the EU, reporting on impacts on council
services, residents, communities and businesses

C2

KEY POINTS
1.

This is the the full Corporate Risk Register that committee reviews every
year and at the meeting the Committee chooses two risks to consider in
more detail at a later date.

2.

A list of high priority risks is provided - Annex 1. This follows the review of
the Corporate Risk Register at the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT)
meeting on 12 February,

3.

The reviews on the 3 risks selected at the last meeting are attached
Cyber-security and legacy systems

Annex 2

Emergency Planning and Brexit Readiness

Annex 3

Environmental Implications
4.

None arising from this report.

Author of report – Stephen Evans, Director Communities
Background papers
None other than those referred to in this report

C3

Annex 1
Corporate Risk Register
Risk scoring
Risks are assessed on the basis of their likelihood of occuring (from less than 5%
up to greater than 50%) and their subsequent impact (ranging from no material
impact up to a potential failure of the Council to deliver some or all of its services).
A matrix, shown below, is used to provide an overall numerical score.

Impact

CRITICAL

5

5

10

15

20

25

SERIOUS

4

4

8

12

16

20

MODERATE

3

3

6

9

12

15

MARGINAL

2

2

4

6

8

10

NEGLIGIBLE

1

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

5

VERY
LOW

LOW

MED

HIGH

VERY
HIGH

Likelihood
Corporate Risk Register
Those risks which could have an impact on the functioning of the Council as a
whole have been escalated from departmental registers to the Corporate Register.
In addition SLT has identified a number of cross cutting risks which have also been
included. There are 15 risks, compared with 11 in November. The newly added
risks concern SEND support and inspection (CH risks 4 & 5), roll-out of Universal
Credit (GR risk 20), property portfolio income exposure (GR risk 25) and delivery of
savings (C&C risk 13). The risk on Governance brought in November (SLT risk 2)
has since been downgraded.

i)

Ref: CH Risk 2

Title: Dedicated Schools Grant

Score: 20

Description:
Failure to control escalating school placement costs for children and young people
with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) due to increases in demand
and/or school placement costs. Significant pressure on the High Needs Block of
the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).
Mitigating action:
● Open framework agreements and dynamic purchasing system in place for

C4

the procurement of SEND placements. An expanded placement
commissioning team manages the identification and purchase of
placements in line with children's identified needs, and provides challenge
to SEND caseworkers where more cost-effective placements may provide
similar or improved outcomes for children and young people.
● Strengthened decision-making and approval processes have been
established. There are quarterly Schools Forum meetings to agree priorities
for the DSG. Detailed monthly budget monitoring and reporting is in place
with oversight and scrutiny by senior leaders and Board of Directors to
agree actions where necessary. A three-year SEND transformation plan has
been developed to alleviate the demand and cost of SEND school
placements. and this is being monitored by the SEND delivery group and
SEND Partnership Board, which is chaired by the Chief Executive.

ii)

Ref: CH Risk 3

Title: Placement costs

Score: 20

Description:
Failure to control escalating placement costs for children in care and leaving care
due to increases in demand and/or placement costs.
Mitigating action:
● Open framework agreement and dynamic purchasing system in place for
the procurement of care (and SEND) placements. An expanded placement
commissioning team manages the identification and purchase of
placements in line with children's identified needs, and provides challenge
to social work managers where more cost-effective placements may provide
similar or improved outcomes for children and young people.
● There is evidence that the team is having a positive impact on reducing
individual placement costs. Strengthened decision-making and approval
processes have been established including DCS agreement to placements
over £2,500 per week. Monthly financial monitoring is in place with oversight
and scrutiny by the senior leadership team and reporting to the Board of
Directors and Council.

iii)

Ref:CH Risk 4

Title: SEND support

Score: 16

Description:
Failure to provide sufficient, appropriate and timely support to children and young
people with SEND and their parents.
Children and young people with SEND do not receive a coherent service that
meets their assessed needs leading to poor quality outcomes. The company fails

C5

to meet its statutory responsibilities to children with SEND leading to adverse
Tribunal judgements and increased costs. There is a poor working relationship with
local parents and reputational damage to the company.
Mitigating action:
● The risk score has been increased due to the outcomes of the local
area SEND reviews in RBWM and most recently in Kingston.
SEND reviews have been completed and have led to the
establishment of working groups to improve provision for children
with SEND and support for those working with them. The resulting
action plans are monitored by the partnership groups in both
operational areas. The action plan for Richmond and Kingston will
be revised to reflect the findings from the inspection and the
Statement of Action issued by Ofsted and the CQC. Performance
snapshots include key performance indicators to give early warning
if service quality and reliability starts to reduce. Additional staffing
resources have been agreed to manage the increased demand for
Education, Health and Care Plans. A Programme Director has
been appointed to lead the SEND transformation programme in
Kingston and Richmond.
iv)

Ref: SLT Risk 1

Title: Brexit preparedness

Score: 16

Description:
Impact of Brexit on the council services and preparedness for such.
Key issues may include (but are not restricted to): limitations on movement of
workers affecting staffing for RBK’s partners which utilise or sub-contract to firms
with high proportions of EU workers (e.g. ASC / Waste Services); legislation
changes across regulatory areas and procurement; goods and services that may
be subject to tariffs and border checks; restrictions on EU funding for VCS and
charitable sector; local businesses that have customer / supply chains that cross
EU boundaries facing increasing costs / delays - and the possible knock-on effect
for Business Rates revenue.
Mitigating action:
● RBK has stepped up its contingency planning in relation to the
potential impacts of a 'hard Brexit'. The Council is closely involved
with the London Resilience Forum and the LGA to share learning and
best practice, and attends briefing events when arranged by Central
Government.

C6

● The Director, Communities has been identified as the Chief Officer
coordination lead for RBK and an internal Task & Finish Group has
been created, coordinated by the Emergency Planning Manager,
which brings together senior officers from across key service areas to
assess risk/impact and develop mitigations.
● A set of key work streams has been develop to be overseen by the
T&FG and an action log created. Engagement has begun with local
partners via the Kingston Strategic Partnership and direct contact to
schools and Kingston Hospital.
● A report of Brexit preparations will be taken to Audit Committee on 12
March 2019.
v)

Ref: AD Risk 6

Title: Homelessness

Score: 15

Description:
Welfare reforms and particularly the roll out of Universal Credit (UC) resulting in
increased risk of homelessness across tenure
Mitigating action:
● There is a Corporate Prevention Group focussing on the impacts of
Welfare Reforms, which all key partners attend.
● The Welfare Reform team within Housing Options work proactively
with affected households and the Financial Inclusion Team (FIT) also
assist RBK tenants with financial difficulties.
vi)

Ref: CH Risk 5

Title: Inspection risks

Score: 15

Description:
Children's services are judged to be inadequate following an inspection of services
for children and young people. There is a failure to trust in the company's ability to
protect and promote the education, health and care of children and young people.
This may lead to significant reputational damage to the company. Additional
management and financial resources are required to improve services.
Mitigating action:
● The risk score has been increased following the outcome of the local area
SEND inspection because it highlighted a gap in the evidence bank and
multi-agency preparation for this particular inspection.
● Effective plans in place to prepare the organisation for inspection including
an inspection plan and self-assessment process; however, the focus has
been on social care inspections and readiness arrangements are in the
process of being strengthened to better the reflect the requirements of

C7

SEND and health service inspections.
● Learning and Improvement Plans identify areas for improvement and are
monitored by the Director of Improvement. These are informed by an
established programme of performance monitoring and quality assurance
activity including casework audits and Practice Weeks. Employees receive
regular training, development sessions and briefings to ensure effective
practice and inspection readiness.
vii)

Ref: GR Risk 20

Title: Roll-out of Universal Credit

Score: 15

Description:
Data from other areas which have had roll out of full service Universal Credit
(UC)have indicated an increase in rent arrears and substantial demands on staff.
Mitigating action:
● There is a Corporate Prevention Group focussing on the impacts of Welfare
Reforms, which all key partners attend. We have the Financial Inclusion
Team who assist tenants with financial difficulties, the new housing model is
looking at the sign up process to flag new tenants at risk, co-location of
DWP at Guildhall has helped with resolving issues.
● There is a flag on UH so rent arrears for UC tenants can be measured
separately. Bad debt provision has been increased to account for UC debt.

viii)

Ref: GR Risk 25

Title: Existing property portfolio
Income Exposure

Score: 15

Description:
Of the 163 'Investment properties' in ownership, approximately 58% of investment
property income is derived from just 2 properties in Kingston town centre (John
Lewis & Conquest House/Kings Place) creating an income exposure risk.

Mitigating action:
● Strategic grading review of all assets in progress to assess
contribution and exposure by asset. New investment model in
progress for approval in April which aims to limit Kingston 'global'
income and geographical/income exposure from any single asset's
performance. Maintain close relationship with tenant/leaseholder of
exposed assets. Consider transfer of assets to new property company
once incorporated subject to taxation and legal advice. Immediately
consider outsourcing of property management to external company
where this supports risk mitigation.

C8

ix)

Ref: C&C Risk 13

Title: Delivery of savings

Score: 15

Description:
Transformation plans and savings programmes for 2018/19 and 2019/20 are
delayed or do not realise savings as planned leading to both in-year overspends
and/or significant financial pressures in future years. This could reduce our already
low reserves and place the Council at significant risk of financial instability.

Mitigating action:
● SLT will receive a monthly update of savings RAG ratings and budget
readiness. The level of red savings in 18/19 is £7m and alternative in-year
savings a have been found for most of these and the forecast overspend is
reduced to £1.2m. Further work is ongoing to reduce this still further in the
lead up to financial year-end.
● Future years proposals have been through detailed review and directors
have taken ownership of budgets and are developing their delivery plans.
● Regular monitoring in 19/20 will track progress. Budget readiness process
will be instigated from March 2019.
● In the 2019/20 budget the Council has made a contribution to the general
fund reserves of £3.5 m recognising the inherent risks and pressures the
Council faces in relation to the financial position. There is a planned
contribution across the lifetime of the medium term financial strategy
recognising the need to ensure continued financial sustainability.

x)

C&C Risk 14

Title: Managing growth

Score: 15

Description:
Increases in demand for support from adults and childrens care services, as well
as legislative changes in Housing and adverse impact of extreme weather on
highways are all putting pressure on Council budgets. Some of these demand
trends are expected to continue and there is a risk that this is not containable
within existing budgets without interventions. The MTFS has limited scope to offer
budget growth in any area and consequently we need to deliver changes in what
and how we deliver to ensure that increased demand can be met within the cost
envelope.
Mitigating action:
● Growth needs have been assessed as part of the 19/20 budget setting

C9

process and budget has been allocated to meet unavoidable pressures.
Monthly budget review and monitoring will help us identify growth pressures
early in 19/20 and delivery against savings plans will be tracked.
● Some of these proposals are intended to reduce demand which in turn will
reduce the potential for future growth pressures. Budget readiness process
will be instigated from March 2019.

xi)

C&C Risk 15

Title: Funding changes

Score: 15

Description:
2019/20 is the last year of a 4-year funding settlement. Future funding will be
determined by the spending review, the fair funding review, business rates
retention and the London Pilot as well as specific funding initiatives such as the
Better Care Fund (due to end in 2 years). There is a risk that these changes could
adversely affect the level of funding received by the Council and consequently
require increased levels of savings to be delivered. There is also the risk that the
high levels of uncertainty mean our financial plans contain a high level of
assumptions that could prove to be inaccurate. This would impact strategic
decision making and reduce confidence in the Council's ability to manage within
budget.

Mitigating action:
● The SFS will analyse all technical funding announcements and provide input
to all consultations on the spending review, fair funding and business rates.
Networks with the Society of London Treasurers, the Deputy Treasurers
Group and technical forums enable us to receive information early and
benefit from a wide range of expertise across London.
● Regular review and stress testing of the MTFP will enable us to test
resilience and benchmark our assumptions against other Councils.

xii)

COM Risk 10

Title: Emergency planning

Score: 15

Description:
Robustness of local arrangements and responding to changes to London wide
Emergency Planning requirements, if not implemented could affect RBK ability to
respond to local and pan London emergencies and support local residents,
businesses and partners.

C10

Mitigating action:
● Implementation of LA actions from Emergency Planning 2020 and
Standardisation program.
● A new command and control structure introduced from February 2019 Council Gold, Silver and Local Authority Liaison Officers.
● All plans and capability documents are being reviewed to align with
standardisation and London Concept of operations. Internal Council Desk
top exercise to be delivered June 2019.
xiii)

COM Risk 12

Title: Service delivery

Score: 15

Description:
Cyber Security - Old and unsupported operating systems, lack of staff awareness
and training, cyber attack etc - leading to data loss or loss of systems for a period
of time.
Mitigating action:
● Links to LGA, NCSC to develop and evolve the skills needed. Cyber
security manager leading with changing and improving Council Systems,
PSN test, cyber essentials. Staff have undertaken Information Governance
training and phishing test completed.
● A report on Cyber Security and Information Governance is being taken to to
Audit Committee on 12 March.
xiv)

AD Risk 1

Title: Adult safeguarding

Score: 10

Description:
A serious safeguarding failure occurs. Need to undertake DoLs assessments in
time.
The adult in question will come to harm which could result in litigation against the
council and a corresponding loss of income and adverse publicity against the
council.
Mitigating action:
● We have carried out a great deal of work to improve the standard of adult
safeguarding in Kingston. We have now improved training for staff,
centralising triaging in the Access Team to make decision making more
consistent and all staff are now more skilled in dealing with investigations.
● We have now trained all staff to carry out DOLs/best interest assessments
and expect them to carry out a minimum number of assessments per year.

C11

●
●

●

●

●

●
●
xv)

This has given us more oversight of assessments and massively reduced
the cost of assessments as we commission far fewer assessments.
Improving processes: The safeguarding forms used by social work staff are
now integrated within the IAS system.
Triaging of safeguarding cases now takes place centrally; the Safeguarding
Team and Short Term Team have now merged, which ensures that the
service is more robust and resilient.
Processing of previous DOLs assessments : a dedicated member of staff
has been employed to improve the processes in place regarding DoLs
authorisations.
The recording database has been changed, there is a monitoring process in
place for conditions attached to DoLs authorisations, and an enhanced
process is in place for recording information on RPRs. Work has been
completed on previous DoLs assessments that were not well filed and
processed, although there remains a small risk that other paper work may
be discovered.
The risk in relation to payment as a result of legal action through the Court
of Protection remains although the local authority has not yet been advised
of any payment due.
Introduce Safeguarding Audit to improve quality, enhance practise to make
safeguarding personal, with individuals at the heart of the work.
Fully recruited 3 full-time best interest assessors.
CH Risk 1

Title: Childrens safeguarding

Score: 10

Description:
A serious safeguarding failure occurs
● The child in question will come to harm.
● There may be litigation against the council and a corresponding loss of
income.
● There would be adverse publicity against the council.
Mitigating action:
● Clear mechanisms in place for reporting concerns about a child.
● Clear Threshold Framework in place through Single Point Access and Multi
Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH).
● Local Safeguarding Children's Board.Arrangements in place to transfer to
new strategic and operational framework following national review of
LSCBs.

C12

C13

Annex 2
Cyber Security and Information Governance - Corporate Risk Review
The purpose of this report is to update Committee on the work currently undertaken and
planned to help manage the risk associated with Cyber Security and Information
Governance.
Introduction
1.

Cybersecurity is the protection of internet-connected systems, including hardware,
software and data, from cyberattacks. In a computing context, security comprises
cybersecurity and physical security -- both are used by enterprises to protect
against unauthorized access to data centers and other computer systems.

2.

Information management is the collection, storage, dissemination, archiving and
destruction of information. It enables teams and stakeholders to use their time,
resource and expertise effectively to make decisions and to fulfil their roles.

3.

Both are essential to the success of service delivery for the Council. A cyber attack
leading to any unscheduled downtime of systems would mean that the Council is
unable to deliver services. Whilst failing to manage information correctly could lead
to service failure, inefficiencies and risk to the Council reputation.

4.

The current risk rating for this likelihood of 4 and impact of 5. There are a number
of areas that the Council is working on to reduce the likelihood but the impact of not
having systems or losing data would remain a high impact of 5.

5.

The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) came into being in May 2018. It
extends the data rights of individuals, and places a range of new obligations on
organisations that process personal data.

Work undertaken/being undertaken to mitigate the risk for Cyber Security
6.

Public Sector Network (PSN): The Council achieved compliance with the PSN
network security requirements again for 2018/19. The PSN is the government’s
high-performance network, which helps public sector organisations work together,
reduce duplication and share resources. The compliance process ensures that the
Council has the technical design, security, processes and procedures to manage
information securely. This also includes an external security test of the network.

7.

Cyber Essentials: Following a formal assessment by an external accreditation body,
Digital and IT have been awarded the Cyber Essentials Certification. The
certification gives peace of mind that defences will protect against the vast majority
of common cyber attacks. Digital and IT are currently carrying out a Cyber
Essentials Plus gap analysis with external assessors and looking to implement in
the future. Cyber Essentials Plus is a more rigorous test of our cyber security
systems.

8.

Phishing: “the fraudulent practice of sending emails purporting to be from reputable
companies in order to induce individuals to reveal personal information, such as
passwords and credit card numbers.” Phishing is one of the biggest risks for the
Council and on the internet in general. An inhouse tool has now been developed to
assist in raising awareness across the Council for the importance of being aware of
the risks of phishing and to ensure that staff are aware of what to look out for to
avoid falling for any scam and what to do if concerned.

C14

Annex 2
9.

Unsupported Hardware and Software including Operating System. Significant
progress has been made to remove unsupported operating systems over the past
12 months to ensure the Council is on supported and maintained versions. This is
an ongoing process as other hardware and software will regularly become end of
support. There is a programme of work that is continually reviewing and upgrading
across the Council.

10.

National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC): We have continued to foster our links with
the National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC), which is part of GCHQ and are
participating in several initiatives with them including:
a. NCSC Webcheck service, which continually scans our internet facing
infrastructure, websites (the ones ending in .gov.uk), firewalls and technical
components of web sites for problems and misconfigurations, and alerts us
when anything is discovered, this is a good service and thus far we have had
little to fix. As a result of this NCSC have asked us to be an alpha test of the
new improved service.
b. Took part in the pilot of the Cyber Security Stocktake of English Councils
before the main survey being sent out in August. We have just received the
results of this with a overall rating of Amber Green which puts us in the top
quartile of English councils, with London as a region doing fairly well overall.
i.

The following areas were of strength for the Council: training and
awareness; our information governance and cyber security structures,
and onwards in to reporting to senior management. We were also
confirmed as inline with the technical controls and expectations within
the UK government Minimal Cyber Security Standard (published in
summer 2018 this is the emerging standard for the UK public sector)

ii.

There are a number of areas that the Council is working to strengthen:
the update of the Digital & IT risk register to include a wider range of
cyber security; further training in cyber security; participation in NCSC
desktop exercise and embed cyber security into the overall Council
Business Continuity Plans, finally better using of logging and reporting
from systems and use of threat intelligence

Work undertaken/being undertaken to mitigate the risk for Information Governance
11.

The overall aim of Information Governance work for the Council is to protect the
data and information that the Council holds about our Residents, Customers and
Businesses.

12.

The Council has updated policies and processes to ensure that the Council was
prepared for the new requirements of GDPR and to ensure that it regularly monitors
and reviews these in line with any updates.

13.

The Council has reviewed and updated the Information Asset Register and
Retention and Disposal Schedule. These registers enable the Council to identify,
understand and manage information assets as well as any associated risks. These
will be reviewed and updated quarterly.

C15

Annex 2
14.

The Council’s website has been updated to comply with and reflect the change in
legislation and to provide clear guidance on how the public can exercise their data
rights. Privacy Notices are displayed on our webpage.

15.

Processes have been put in place for the new and existing data rights, these
include Subject Access Requests and the Right to Erasure. Staff receive training
and guidance on handling these requests.

16.

When ‘Consent’ is the necessary lawful basis for processing information we have
worked with teams to ensure that the correct process is being followed. The GDPR
sets a high standard for consent, this is documented in our Information Asset
Register ensuring that our obligations under Article 7 of the GDPR are met.

17.

Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) is a process to help us identify and
minimise the data protection risks to a project. The DPIA process has been
reviewed and embedded into the project management and commissioning process.

18.

Training and awareness for staff and Councillors on Information Governance
continues to take place. Those with specific roles such as Data Protection Officer,
Senior Information Risk Owner and Caldicott Guardian have had specific training.
Throughout the year training and drop in sessions have been provided to all staff.

19.

Review and ensure that the commissioning arrangements for any spin out or arms
length companies include satisfactory Information Governance and Security
requirements and that these are checked on a regular basis.

20.

There is a programme of work for 2019/20 to ensure that improvements continue to
be made in the management of Information.

Next Steps
21.

Forward plans for Information Governance and Digital & IT are developed and
maintained to ensure that the Council continually improves Cyber Security and
Information Governance for the Council. The plan includes the following:
a. regularly review and update policies and procedures
b. Undertake data flow mapping exercise across the Council and link to the
Information Asset Register
c. Continue to represent the Council at the London-wide Information
Governance network and work collaboratively where appropriate. Warning,
Advice and Reporting Point (WARP’s); Information Security for London
(ISfL) and Information Governance for London (IGfL).
d. Review the Digital & IT risk register to include all Cyber risks
e. Continue to work with NCSC on initiatives such as the tabletop Disaster
Recovery /Business Continuity exercise
f. Involvement in the MHCLG Pathfinder program which seeks to develop
better response planning in the event of cyber incidents.
g. Continue to ensure the technical compliance with requirements for PSN,
DWP, NHS etc.

C16

Annex 2
h. Ensure staff are aware of all their responsibilities and embed a culture of
Cyber Security and Information Governance into the Council.
i.

Councillor and Staff training will continue to be maintained and developed
and ensure that we enforce training is completed to reach 100% of the
Council.

Author of report - Mark Lumley, Assistant Director, Digital & IT
.
o None other than those referred to in this report

C17

Annex 3
Update on Emergency Planning Resilience & Brexit preparedness
Corporate Risk review

PURPOSE
At the meeting of the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on 21 November
2018 - following discussion about the council’s corporate risk register, the Committee
requested a more detailed report be brought back setting out the council’s work to
mitigate the identified risks relating to Emergency Planning and to Brexit
preparedness. In response, this report provides an update to the Committee about
the work currently underway to improve Emergency Planning resilience and
preparations for a ‘no deal’ Brexit.
Key Points and Recommendations
On Emergency Planning:.
A.
B.

C.

To note the recent improvements made to emergency planning resilience in
Kingston Council and further improvements in the pipeline.
To note the actions to introduce the London Emergency Planning 2020
standardisation programme and resilience assurance programme across
Kingston Council, with the implementation programme on target to have the
required arrangements in place by September 2019.
To note that a more detailed report on emergency planning resilience will be
brought to Community Engagement Committee in the spring 2019.

On Brexit preparedness:
D.

To note the work underway across the council and with local partners to
prepare for a ‘no deal’ Brexit.

E.

To note that a more detailed, follow-up report will be taken to the Community
Engagement Committee - which has responsibility for contingency planning three months after the UK has left the EU, reporting on impacts on council
services, residents, communities and businesses.

Emergency Planning Resilience
Improving emergency planning at the London-level
1.

In 2017, London Chief Executives agreed the London Emergency Planning
2020 programme, which states the level of resilience and emergency planning
that London should have by 2020 in order to make it more resilient to
emergency and disruptive incidents.

2.

Following the winter floods of 2013/2014 and London Boroughs support to the

C18

Grenfell Tower Fire, London Chief Executives agreed a standardisation
programme, to increase the interoperability & support London Boroughs can
provide to each other when large scale or pan London emergency or
disruptive incidents occur.
3.

The Standardisation Programme aims to align all emergency planning,
training and exercising arrangements, to enhance resilience across the
capital. This is being achieved by all boroughs participating in specific
workstreams to develop a standardised approach in the following areas:

4.

Emergency Plans & terminology: A new Command and Control system has
been established, with defined roles and responsibilities. Template plans, role
profiles and guides are being developed for these roles. All Kingston Council’s
emergency plans are being re-written to reflect these new structures & roles.

5.

Training: A standardised training programme, with guides, is being
developed and training commenced in January 2019 for some roles (council
Gold & Silver). All roles within the new structure will have received training by
the end of 2019.

6.

Exercising: A standard exercise programme, (one to one, e-learning, desktop
and activation / set up) is being developed and all staff undertaking roles
under standardisation will participate in emergency planning and response
exercises.

7.

To enable both London Emergency Planning 2020 and the Standardisation
programme to be effective, a new strategic command and control programme
“ London Concept of Operations” (known as Conops) has been implemented
and this sets out response levels at council Gold (previously Strategic),
council Silver (previously Tactical) & council Bronze (previously Operational),
Borough Emergency Coordination Centre and Emergency Shelter Roles.
See Appendix A for Local Authority Concept of Operations Structure.

8.

To monitor and give assurance on the effectiveness of the above
workstreams, a new set of resilience standards is being developed in
consultation with London Local Authorities, London Councils and the London
Resilience Group. This will enable boroughs to assess implementation and
performance against the new workstreams in a self assessment process, via
a peer review by another London Local Authority, and by external peer review
by an external body.

9.

Regarding the development of the new resilience standards, Kingston has
been an active member of the South West London Resilience Programme
Board, represented by the Director, Communities and the Contingency
Planning Manager.

10.

Kingston has an implementation programme for the above work streams and

C19

is on target to have the required arrangements in place by September 2019.
Borough-level improvements
11.

Locally, emergency planning resilience is being improved on a number of
levels:
● Strategic response coordination - council Gold. From 11 February
2019, all council employed Directors and Assistant Directors will
participate in a council Gold on-call rota. Previously, the CEO was
required to be on Gold 24/7, 365 days a year. In advance of the rota
starting these staff have received Strategic Crisis Management training
from the Cabinet Office Emergency Planning College. This training
covers the strategic command processes for dealing with a local,
regional and pan-London emergency incident. Council Gold Officers
receive no remuneration for on-call activities.
● Tactical response coordination - council Silver. From 11 February
2019, all Corporate Heads of Service (CHoS) will participate in a
council Silver on-call rota from February 2019. In advance of the rota
starting these staff have received Tactical Crisis Management training
from the Cabinet Office Emergency Planning College. This training
covers the tactical command process for dealing with a local, regional
and pan London emergency incident. Council Silver Officers receive no
remuneration for on-call activities.
● Operational response coordination - council Bronze. The council’s
Major Incident Team, which previously operated as council Silver, has
been reformed as council Bronze and renamed as the Local Authority
Liaison Officers (LALO) and will continue to be on an on-call rota and
be the first point of contact and response for the council, when alerted
to local, regional and or pan-London emergency emergencies.LALO
Officers receive an on-call remuneration for Bronze level response
arrangements.
● Member Training - An induction and training programme for
Councillors has been introduced, outlining the council’s command &
control structure and members roles in response to & recovery from
emergency incidents. This has proved popular with elected members
and will be repeated at intervals.

12.

The council restructure has enabled a review of all roles within the
organisation and the corporate roles and responsibilities required in each role
profile. This has enabled a review of the previous clause relating to
participation in other duties to me more defined and expanded to confirm that
all staff have a role in responding to emergency incidents and may be
withdrawn from usual duties if required for the response.

C20

13.

An internal council desktop exercise will take place during June to test the
new arrangements, identify gaps and training requirements, and to develop
Kingston as a learning council.

14.

Council Bronze Officers (LALO’s) will also be participating in a number of
training exercises promoted by partners agencies, the first of these is a Police
multi agency exercise on 6th March at Chessington World of Adventures,
followed later in the summer with a joint exercise at Kingston Hospital.

15.

A more detailed report on emergency planning resilience will be brought to
Community Engagement Committee in the spring 2019.

Brexit preparedness
16.

The Government and the LGA have advised all Local Authorities to begin
planning for Brexit. In October 2018, the council’s Senior Leadership Team
(CEO and Directors) agreed a number of recommendations to take forward
work to assess the potential impacts of a no deal Brexit on Kingston - the
council, its local strategic partners, and the borough. These measures
(summarised below) are in addition to the regional and national Brexit
preparations Kingston is undertaking with London Councils, the LGA, the
London Resilience Group and central government.

17.

Due to the uncertainty and changing picture at a national level, the
implications of a no deal Brexit on Kingston, and the country more broadly,
are difficult to assess. Guidance from central government, the LGA, London
Councils and other local authorities have identified a common set of themes
which have been used as a framework for assessing the potential impacts for
a no deal Brexit, these are:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Workforce
Citizens rights
Community Cohesion
Council funding
Supply chain
IT/systems
Legislation
Economy
Emergency Planning
Elections

18.

The Director, Communities has taken responsibility at SLT level for
overseeing the coordination Brexit monitoring and preparedness and the
Contingency Planning Manager has responsibility at an operational level.

19.

The council has established a cross-directorate Task and Finish Group which
brings together senior officer from across the council and Achieving for

C21

Children to assess the impact Brexit could have on the council, its residents
and communities and businesses.
20.

In consultation with local and regional partners, the Brexit Task and Finish
group is developing an impact log for a no deal exit on the workstreams areas
identified above, with mitigating actions to address some of the potential
impacts in the following areas:
● Community Cohesion - in consultation with faith groups, Community
groups and the Metropolitan Police.
● Economic impact on small and medium businesses - in consultation
with Kingston Chamber of Commerce, Kingston First, Kingston
University.
● Citizens Rights - in consultation with Kingston Citizen Advice Bureau,
Kingston Voluntary Action, Voluntary Sector Organisations working with
migrant groups, DWP, Kingston University, Kingston College.

21.

In addition, a review of the council’s Business Continuity arrangements is
underway, which will include the following:
- Review of Business Continuity Policy
- Review of Corporate Business Continuity Plan
- Creation of Directorate Business Continuity Plans
- Review service business continuity plans following a business impact
analysis, review direction of travel changes and Brexit impacts, completion
time scale (end of March 2019).

22.

The council is participating in pan-London Brexit arrangements, in conjunction
with London Council’s, LGA & London Resilience via weekly teleconference
and Brexit workshops.

23.

A pan-London Boroughs weekly reporting process has been established, with
London Boroughs reporting on Brexit impacts, planning and good practice to
London Council and MHCLG each Wednesday, this is then agreed as a
London report by Thursday and submitted to the national review, which takes
place each Friday.

24.

A report has been given to the Safer Kingston Partnership on 18 January
2019, on the Brexit arrangements and possible borough impacts at that point.
Partnership members are liaising regarding preparations for a no deal Brexit.

25.

 he Borough Resilience Forum (Borough Multi-agency Partners) is
T
monitoring borough based impacts and the March meeting will take the form
of a borough based Brexit workshop. Ongoing liaison between partners is
taking place to review the multiagency impact on the borough and on partner
agencies i.e. impacts on medical and medicine supply; workforce of provider
organisations.

C22

26.

Brexit preparations will continue until 29 March and response arrangements
will commence from 30 March. Additional resources may be required to
mitigate the impacts of exiting the EU, the scale of which will vary depending
on whether a deal is reached or these is no deal.

27.

It was recently announced that each London Borough will receive £210k over
two years (2018/19 and 2019/20) to help support Brexit preparations and
Kingston has also created a local Brexit contingency.

28.

A more detailed, follow-up report will be taken to the Community Engagement
Committee - which has responsibility for contingency planning - three months
after the UK has left the EU, reporting on impacts on council services,
residents, communities and businesses.

Resource Implications
None, currently managed within service resources.
Risk Assessment
Brexit impact log under review

Background papers - held by author/other - insert contact details
Chris Begley Contingency Planning and CCTV Manager
Tel: 020 8547 5400 Email: Chris.begley@kingston.gov.uk
None other than those referred to in this report

C23

D1

Appendix D

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee
12 March 2019

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE
Report by the Head of the South West London Audit Partnership (SWLAP)
Purpose
To provide the Committee with assurances around the Council’s control environment
based on the work carried out by Internal Audit since April 2018; including identification of
significant issues arising from this work and providing assurance that appropriate action is
being undertaken to address these issues.
Recommendation
To Resolve that the work undertaken by Internal Audit and Priority 1 recommendations
raised and progress being made to address those issues identified is noted.
KEY POINTS
A. The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee has, amongst other things, responsibility
for the “review of internal audit strategy, plans and performance; consideration of a
summary of the most significant issues arising from internal audit work; and obtaining
assurance that appropriate action is being taken on those issues.” This report has been
provided to assist the Committee in meeting its responsibilities.
B. It is considered that a quarterly update to the Committee on the work of Internal Audit is
more helpful than ad-hoc reports to the Committee in meeting its responsibilities with
respect to Internal Audit.

D2
PROGRESS AGAINST PLAN 2018/19
1.

Progress against the 2018/19 plan as at 31st January 2019 is as follows:

Number of audits in the plan (including
audits c/f from 2017/18**

Audits

Days

43

557.5

Audit Days delivered

466

Number of audits finalised*

21

Number of audits at draft report stage

0

Number of audits in progress**

12

Number of audits not started

2

Number of audits cancelled or moved to
2019/20

8

(* includes 2017/18 audits carried forward to this year’s plan)
(** includes continuous audit)

2.

The agreed deliverable audit days commissioned from the shared service was 697.5 days
which included 557.5 days for RBK and 280 days for AfC, with the AfC days split equally
between LBR and RBK (140 days each).
The agreed audit plan included 557.5 days and currently this number remains the same.
The plan needs to remain flexible to account for in-year changes.

3.

At the time of this report, approximately 84% of the plan has been completed based on
number of days delivered, this compares to 79 % at this time last year.

4.

The total number of pieces of audit work completed or which are work in progress is 33. A
further 8 audits have been cancelled or moved forwards to the 2019/20 plan.

5.

Annex 1 details the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan and shows the status of work to date
with the assurance level for completed audits along with any audits that have been
cancelled or moved.

6.

Internal audit visits Directorate Management Teams a number of times throughout the
year to discuss progress against the plan and to review the audits which are still to be
undertaken to ensure they are still relevant and timely.

7.

Internal audit applies a risk based audit approach to audit work, identifying key risks
with the relevant manager, then identifying and testing controls in place to manage
those risks. A formal overall conclusion is then reached as to whether a sound system
of internal control is being maintained.

D3
8.

Each audit is given an opinion based on 4 levels of assurance depending on the
conclusions reached and the evidence to support those conclusions. Members and
management should note that the assurance level is an opinion of controls in
operation at the time of the audit. The auditor will agree with management a number of
recommendations which, when implemented, will result in a reduction of the exposure
to risk. Each recommendation is given a priority ranking and an implementation date
and these are monitored on a regular basis by the internal audit team. Priority 1
recommendations are defined as being those where major issues have been identified
for the attention of senior management.

Levels of assurance
Full
Assurance

There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system
objectives and manage the risks to achieving those objectives. No
weaknesses have been identified. (NB full assurance is based only on the
sample tested and does not guarantee that there are no instances of control
failure within a system that we have looked at unless we state that we have
reviewed 100% of transactions).

Substantial
Assurance

Whilst there is a largely sound system of control, there are some
weaknesses, which may put a limited number of the system objectives at
risk.

Limited
Assurance

There are significant weaknesses in key control areas, which put the
system objectives at risk.

No
Assurance

Control is weak, leaving the system open to material error or abuse.

Priority of recommendations
1

Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior
management.

2

Important issues which should be addressed by management in their areas
of responsibility to avoid exposure to significant risk.

3

Minor issues where the risk is low. Action is advised to enhance control or
improve operational efficiency.

D4
REPORTS FINALISED SINCE THE LAST AUDIT COMMITTEE AND SIGNIFICANT
CONTROL WEAKNESSES
9.

Annex 3 sets out a schedule of the Priority 1 recommendations made since we last
provided an update to Audit, Governance and Standards Committee in November
2018, together with the management response. There are 3 audits finalised since the
last meeting with either Limited or No assurance and 5 Priority 1 recommendations
raised:

Audit

Assurance

No. Priority 1
recommendations

GDPR

Limited

1 (15 issues identified)

Staff Training and Development

Limited

1

ASC Income

Limited

3

10. Achieving for Children (AFC) has an approved audit plan for 2018/19 of 280 days. The
delivery of this plan is reported to the AFC Audit Committee. As at the 29th January
2018, 83% of the schools audit plan had been completed (Annex 2) and 3 Priority 1
recommendations have been raised since we last reported, summarised at Annex 4.
FOLLOW UP OF PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS
11. Internal Audit follow up all Priority 1 recommendations and report progress to this
committee. There are currently 10 recommendations at this level that have exceeded
their initial agreed implementation date. These are detailed in the table below along
with an updated management response.
Recommendation
Commercial Leases
The Corporate Landlord team
should undertake an annual
reconciliation with the help of the
Capital team in Finance of critical
data (property address, tenant
name, rent amount and rent review
amount) from the lease agreement
to the Property Master spreadsheet
to Agresso in order to ensure the
completeness and accuracy of
commercial property records.

Management Response

The governance arrangements for
the acquisition of commercial
property should be reviewed to
ensure that it is fit for purpose,
allows the Council to respond to
opportunities in a timely manner
and is benchmarked against other
Councils.

Reports and a commercial investment business case are
scheduled to come before Members in April 2019. These
will set out new governance arrangements for the
acquisition of commercial property.

The review of commercial assets and critical data is
completed. A report is being compiled to summarise the
findings of this review and this will be reported to Audit,
Governance and Standards Committee at the next meeting
in May 2019.
This asset information will be migrated to a new Property
Database to ensure property records are complete,
accurate and held in one place. Procurement of this system
is likely to be complete by August 2019.

D5
Recommendation
Highways Maintenance follow up
Works Documentation
Management sample checks
should be undertaken on an
ongoing basis to ensure that
the LoHAC procedures introduced
are being followed, from raising
works orders through to final
account and payment and that
timescales specified are adhered
to.
Not all staff are able to scan
documentation onto
the Mayrise system, the reason for
this issue should be investigated.
Contract and Performance
Monitoring
Further analysis of the total spend
on LoHAC against budget across
the different elements of the
contract and year on year since the
start of the contract should be
undertaken, this should establish
whether spend is within the annual
upper spend threshold or whether a
contract variation is required.
The approach to monitoring
total spend on contracts should be
considered to ensure there is a
process for highlighting to Service
Managers/Heads of Service when
the annual value of the contract is
near its threshold.
Issues raised at bi weekly meetings
with Kier should have agreed
actions with completion dates for
resolution, where these deadlines
are missed this should be
escalated.
KPI’s for RBK Projects should be
added to the Kier Quarterly
Performance Report.
Adult Education Follow Up
It is recommended that a plan
is developed and resources
allocated to review data held at
KAE to ensure that it is held
securely and confidentially and that
there is a review of archived data
within KAE to ensure that the
correct retention and disposal
timescales have been applied to
existing archived data.

Management Response
-

Defect register is an item on the agenda of biweekly meetings
Management checks is an agenda item on the
Highways and Transport fortnightly group
management meetings
The Mayrise issue has proved difficult to address
but is thought to be linked to individual officers
account set up in Modern Desktop. In any event, the
service is imminently procuring a new replacement
Highways system so this issue will be addressed.
This is planned for October 2019.

The spend analysis was undertaken in December 2018 and
there is an ongoing dialogue with Procurement colleagues
in the Corporate and Commercial directorate
KPIs are reported and validated on a monthly basis. The
Go-Cycle KPIs are reported as project KPIs

KAE have reviewed and updated their document retention
policy.
A substantial amount of work has been undertaken to
review the data stored, to securely dispose of documents in
accordance with the document retention policy and to
maintain a record of what is held. This project is still work in
progress and it is anticipated that this will be complete by
August 2019.

D6
Recommendation

Management Response
Clarification has been sought from ESFA who confirm they
do allow for the digital storing of records.
A GDPR working group has been set up to progress.
Head of KAE to continue with GDPR group.

A decision should be made
with representatives of KAE
Business Support, Finance and ICT
as to whether it is cost effective to
try and resolve the system interface
issues between
PICS, Agresso and iTrent. If it is a
plan should be agreed detailing
how the issues will be addressed
and assigning roles,
responsibilities, timescales and
resources required.
The feasibility of enrolments for
KAE courses being taken on line
must be investigated as a priority.
An options appraisal should be
undertaken and reported upon
within a specified timescale and
officers allocated specific tasks
within that.
The Statement of Particulars sent
to sessional tutors should be
reviewed by the SLLP and legal
opinion sought as a priority.
Changes that should be considered
to include the ten-day allowance for
sick pay which was agreed in 1997
and has not been reviewed since.
The issue of sessional staff
acquiring employment rights after 2
years also needs to be investigated
by HR and Legal Services. A clear
policy and subsequent change to
employment rights should be
drafted and agreed depending
upon the outcome.
Clarity as to whether KAE Tutors
undertaking more than 1 hour of
work should have been entitled to
join the Pension Scheme should be
sought and recorded. A thorough
review of staff affected by the
pension’s administrative errors
must be undertaken by HR and

KAE are working with the Digital Design Team to see
whether KAE could be the pilot for Pay For It. Possible date
for new digital platform is 1 April 2019.
The requirement for a booking and payment mechanism
has been added to the corporate list being developed for
the corporate digital platform projects/implementation. The
Digital Service Design work happening across Kingston will
also capture other opportunities; for services within the
Communities directorate this will happen in Q1 2019/20
financial year.

Contracts have all been updated. The consultation has
started but has been extended for an additional month.
Revised completion date April 2019.
Samples of existing live contracts were sent to Legal for
scrutiny and advice.
Three different types of contract templates have now been
finalised. Informal consultation with Unions started at the
beginning of February 2019 and has been extended for an
additional month. Revised completion date April 2019.

It was noted that there were mistakes in the pension arrears
figures and these were queried with Teachers Pensions.
This has been chased several times and it is hoped that a
response will be received before the end of February 2019.

D7
Recommendation
Management Response
Finance so that a complete and
accurate list is produced. Steps can
then be taken to put staff in the
position they would have been if
the appropriate action had been
taken at the time.

Housing Repairs Follow up
The Housing Team should
thoroughly explore the options
available to deliver the new
Housing model ensuring that the
system requirements and future
service needs are taken into
consideration and documented.

Recharges
A decision needs to be made as to
whether all monies owed to RBK
for rechargeable repairs from
December 2016 to date will be
written off or whether they should
be invoiced at the earliest
opportunity. If there are issues with
the system, a manual workaround
must be considered on an interim
basis to enable residents to be
invoiced and monies recouped for
repairs performed.
It is understood that the policy to
charge residents £200 prior to
commencing rechargeable works
has not yet been implemented.
This needs to be enforced with
immediate effect.

11.

This work is ongoing - 2 routes/options are being
considered/worked up to address the need for a new
Housing IT system and will be presented to the Project
Board for decision - date of board meeting still to be
confirmed but hopefully before end of this financial year
(Option A - a partnership approach to developing a system
& digital solutions with an RP, Option B - a market
procurement approach for a new system with internal RBK
digital solutions) once board decision is confirmed more
clarity will be provided on timescales for likely
implementation.
HRA Recharge policy drafted and now being aligned where
possible with temporary accommodation recharge
approach. Policy will need to go to SHAP for final approval,
committee date yet to be confirmed. Rechargeable void
works being invoiced since June 2018.

We will continue to track progress against these recommendations and report back to
Committee.

Resource Implications
There are no resource implications arising directly from this report’s recommendations.
Background papers – held by the author of the report:
Alix Wilson - Head of the South West London Audit Partnership 020 8547 5125, e-mail:
alix.wilson@kingston.gov.uk

D8

Official

D9
Annex 1
Progress against 2018/19 Audit Plan
Audit Area
Brought forward from 201718
Accounts Receivable
Capital Expenditure
South London Waste Partnership
Highways Maintenance Contract F/Up
Section 20 Leaseholder Service Charge
Process
Housing Repairs Follow Up
Regulatory Services
NNDR
IR35 Review
Organised Crime - Procurement
Finance and Performance Data Quality
Corporate (Cross Cutting)
Starters and leavers process
GDPR
Contracts
Corporate and Commercial
Council Tax
Housing Benefits
Pension Fund Investments
Journals and General Ledger
Treasury Services
Shared iTrent audit (joint with Merton and
Sutton)
Staff Training & Development (including
Mandatory Training)
South London Waste Partnership
Parking Contract Management
Street Lighting
Housing Income
Income Follow Up
Health & Safety (joint with AfC)
Insurance
Adult Services
Learning Difficulties
Transition from Children’s to Adults
Financial Assessments
Homecare
Pre-paid Cards
Adults Expenditure

Status

Audit Assurance

Final
Final
Final
Final
Final

Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Limited
Limited

Final
Final
Final
Final
Final
Final

Limited
Substantial
Substantial
Limited
Substantial
Substantial

Cancelled to be
performed Quarter 1
2019/20
Final
Limited
Fieldwork

Fieldwork
Fieldwork
Fieldwork
Fieldwork
Fieldwork
Final

Substantial

Final

Limited

Not Started
Fieldwork
Cancelled / move to
2019/20
Not started
Cancelled
Fieldwork
Cancelled

Cancelled move to
2019/20
Fieldwork
Fieldwork complete
Cancelled
Final
Cancelled

Official

D10
Audit Area
Adults Income
Deprivation of Assets
Homelessness

Status
Final
Final
Fieldwork

Communities
Corporate Complaints
ICT Northgate System (Revs & bens)
Civica Housing System upgrade project
ICT Mobile Devices
Risk Management
Adult Education Follow Up

Fieldwork
Final
Cancelled
Final
Final
Final

Growth
Housing Management

Fieldwork complete

Risk Management & Assurance
Framework
Annual Governance Statement
Risk Management Support

On-going
On-going

Other Work
Advice and Information

On-going

Proactive & Real-time Auditing
High Earners and Expenses
Duplicate Payments testing

Fieldwork
Fieldwork

Audit management
Fraud Management and Reactive work
Audit Committee and DMT
Reporting/Attendance
Audit Planning / Monitoring
Follow up and Contingency
Follow Up
Contingency

Audit Assurance
Limited
Advisory

Substantial
Substantial
Advisory
Limited

-

On-going
-

*Joint audits across two or more Boroughs resulting in reduced number of days. Overall assurance
provided by Moore Stephens was Amber/Green which is equivalent to Substantial assurance.

Official

D11
Progress against the 2018/19 Audit Plan (AfC)
(Non-Schools as at 14th January 2019)
Process
Current Position
Accounts Payable
Adoption
Clinical Governance / Health Inspection F/up
DSG (Schools Finance)
Early Years Annual Compliance Check
Education of Children Looked After
GDPR Regulations
General Ledger
Grant Certification work
Health & Safety
Performance Management
Quality Assurance Function
Savings Plans
SEND
Starters & Leavers
Strengthening Families Grant
Training & Development
Transition from Children’s to Adult’s
Management
Follow up work
Contingency
Completion of old year work
- Send High Cost Placements
- RBWM Payroll
- Safeguarding in Schools
Bishop Perrin C of E Primary School
St Andrew's and St Mark's C of E Junior
Lowther Primary
St Richard's Primary (Ham)
King's Oak Primary
Coombe Hill Junior
SFVS
School Follow-ups
School's Advice
Bursar Briefing/Governor Training
Overarching Health & Safety in Schools
Overarching risk/risk registers/disaster
planning/back-ups

Final
Fieldwork
Fieldwork
Final
Fieldwork
complete
Fieldwork
Fieldwork
complete
Final
Final
Fieldwork
Draft
Not started
Fieldwork
complete
Cancelled
Not started
Fieldwork
Fieldwork
complete
Fieldwork
Fieldwork
Fieldwork
complete
Final
Final
Final
Final
Moved to
2019/20
Fieldwork
complete
Final
Final
In progress
In progress
In progress
In progress
Final
Not started

Annex 2
Timing

Assurance

Q1/2
Q3/4
Q3/4
Q1/2
Q3

Substantial
Substantial

Q3/4
Q3
Q2
Q2
Q3/4
Q4
Q3/4
Q3

Substantial
N/A

Q4
Q4
Q1-4
Q3
Q4
Q1-4
-

Q2
Q2
Q3

Substantial
Advisory
Substantial
Substantial

Q3
Q3
Q4
Q4
Q1-4
Q1-4
Q1-4
Q2/3
Q4

Substantial
Substantial

Substantial

Official

Priority 1 recommendations raised since November 2018

Finding/Associated Risk

Annex 3

Recommendation

Management
Response

Target Date

Ongoing

GDPR Compliance Review

1.1

Overall Finding

Main Recommendation

Responsible Officer:

Our review found that both RBK and LBS had
allocated significant resources to facilitate
GDPR compliance; and there was evidence of
effective compliance. However, progress
across RBK and LBS was variable and further
work is required to enable the Councils to
demonstrate compliance particularly in
formalising policies and procedures. Some of
the key areas where action is required are as
follows:

RBK and LBS to carry out
the further work required to
demonstrate full
compliance with the
GDPR.

AD, Digital & IT
The majority of the
recommendations have
now been completed or
are ongoing actions.
Training for staff has
been completed and role
specific training has taken
place. An Information
Governance Network has
been established to
ensure that we continue
to develop and action IG
work across the Councils.
We are reporting to the
ISGB already and to
SLT/CMT.



An Information Asset Register has
been compiled however this was not
complete at the time of the audit;



Policies for the retention and disposal
of personal data had been established
however retention schedules were
found to be incomplete with some data
being held for longer than specified;



A mandatory e-learning training
programme had been rolled out to staff
on information security however not all
staff had completed this

Output/progress should be
reported to the Information
Security and Governance
Boards (ISGB) and to
Directors by the DPO to
ensure that GDPR remains
a priority and that the DPO
is provided with sufficient
resource to discharge their
duties, as advised by the
Information
Commissioners Office
(ICO).

D12

1

Official

1.1

Finding/Associated Risk



There was inadequate evidence
that the Council was routinely
obtaining assurance from partners
e.g. AfC that they were complying
with GDPR;



The review of contracts to ensure
that terms and conditions are
compliant with GDPR had not
been completed;



The Data Protection Impact
Assessment (DPIA) had not been
conducted as a number of
processes were still to be finalised
and operational guidance issued;



Procedures for ensuring that
appointed sub-processors provide
sufficient guarantees that the
requirements of GDPR will be met
had not been finalised.

Overall Risk/Implication
Failure to comply with the GDPR can
result in RBK and LBS being subject to
substantial financial penalties

Recommendation

Management Response

Target Date



D13



Official

Finding/Associated Risk
2
2.1

Staff training and Development
Mandatory Training Completion

Management Response

Staff progress towards
completion of mandatory
training to be routinely reported
to e-learning owners, HR
Business Partners and/or the
Directorate Management
Teams as appropriate. Late
completion, or failure to
complete, mandatory training to
be routinely and effectively
followed up in accordance with
clearly specified remedial
action procedures.

Managing staff completion of the
mandatory training is primarily
the responsibility of line
managers and the staff
themselves, not L&D. That said,
L&D will:
(a) ensure there is SLT buy in for
existing compulsory e-learning
(see earlier action) and
(b) provide monthly reports by
the end of each month, to be
circulated to DMTs via HR BPs
that detail: staff that have
completed – and staff that have
not completed compulsory elearning.

Target Date
From January 2019

D14

There was a rather inconsistent and
fragmented approach to the monitoring of
staff progress in completing learning and
development activities. For example, the
RBK Evolve Learning & Development
system had the functionality to generate
progress reports in respect of each
training module. However, these reports
were usually only produced at the request
of e-learning owners, HR Business
Partners or Directorate Management
Teams, rather than being a routine
centrally driven requirement. Also the
extent and effectiveness of follow up
remedial action taken when training was
not completed promptly or, indeed, at all
was variable. This was of particular
significance in respect of mandatory
training, such as that associated with data
protection. For example, progress
reporting on “Data Protection Awareness
& Information Sharing” training indicated
that a significant proportion of staff had
either not started or had only partially
completed this; and a current
management report on GDPR e-learning
not only revealed that a substantial
number of staff had only partially
completed its five modules, but also the
report did not include those staff who had
not even started this mandatory training

Recommendation

Official

Finding/Associated Risk

Recommendation

Management Response

RBK Adult Social Care income
documented procedures to be
completed, updated, approved
by management and made
available to all relevant staff.
This should include the
operation of the spreadsheet
being used in lieu of an IT
interface.

The Adult Social Care
department is currently leading a
project to review and update its
homecare recording procedures,
to bring these within the
Controcc ICT system. This will
provide a single source of data
for budget forecasting, payments
to providers and billing to service
users. The project has three
main streams of work.
This is an income generation
procedure and that responsibility
lies with the Adult Social Care
service (Adult Social Care
Commissioning).

Target Date

Risk/Implication: The effectiveness of
learning and development progress
monitoring is variable and consequently
degrades the assurance that completion
of mandatory training should provide.
Inadequate staff

3
3.1

Project to complete
by 31/3/2019.

D15

training increases the associated risk of
staff failing to comply with RBK policies
and procedures and with external
legislation. In the context of data
protection, for example, this could lead to
RBK suffering unwelcome, but avoidable,
substantial fines.
Adult Social Care Income
Procedural Documentation
RBK Adult Social Care income
documented procedures were incomplete
and required updating and management
approval. A particular weakness
concerned the operation of a spreadsheet
that is used, in the absence of an IT
interface, as a key stage in the process for
generating invoices on Agresso in respect
of the many non-residential clients. There
was no procedural documentation for this
spreadsheet, which was operated by just
one member of staff; and who was the
only person with the knowledge to perform
this function.

Official

Finding/Associated Risk

Recommendation

Management Response

Target Date

3.1
Risk/Implication
There is an increased risk that RBK Adult
Social Care income procedures may be
applied incorrectly, inconsistently and
ineffectively. Errors may go unnoticed and
there may be business continuity
implications in the event of the one
member of staff (with knowledge of the
system) leaving the Council.

Whilst the AR Team are
currently amending data (on
behalf of ASCC service) the
service does need to take
responsibility and ownership for
their charging policy and raising
of invoices through IAS/Controcc
and an interface into Agresso.
This would resolve any
discrepancies between the two
systems.

D16

The remit of the AR Team is
purely the debt collection
function. The requirement to
urgently implement the interface
will negate the need for written
procedures on current
workarounds.
Firstly, the project will review and
improve current arrangements
whilst the process of
transitioning to IAS/Controcc
takes place. This will ensure that
documentation and resilience
are in place during the transition
period.
Secondly, the project will
implement an ICT-based
process for receiving files of
actual service delivery from care
providers, allowing Controcc to
generate a single source of
actuals-based data. This single

Official

Finding/Associated Risk

Recommendation

Management Response
source will allow us to generate
forecasts, payments and billing
from the same dataset. Initially,
payments will be implemented in
a phased approach.

Target Date
Project to complete
by 31/3/2019

Thirdly, the project will
implement the interface between
IAS/Controcc and Agresso for
AR items, allowing a full move
away from the manual
processes.

3.2

nvoice Generation
There is a control weakness in the manual
process required to upload non-residential
client invoicing data to Agresso. This
process involves the operation of a
spreadsheet by the only member of staff
who is familiar with this procedure. To
minimise the risk of error, a
Controcc/Agresso IT interface is required
for non-residential cases in the same way
as residential ones.

RBK to introduce a
Controcc/Agresso IT interface
for the generation of nonresidential client invoices. In
the interim, management
should satisfy themselves that
the manual process works
effectively and consider
introducing a spot check of
data input to Agresso regarding
non-residential cases

See management response on
section 1 above. The project
mentioned will provide the
required Controcc/Agresso
interface and improve the current
manual processes to meet the
recommendations given.
Invoice generation lies with Adult
Social Care / Commissioning,
although we fully acknowledge
that there needs to be an
interface from Controcc to
Agresso.

D17

The project will provide full
documentation for the end-toend process and remove the
reliance on a single individual
and using manual spreadsheets
and processes for reconciliation.
.
The overall project
is aimed to end on
31/3/2019. However
the section where
current processes
are to be reviewed
will complete on
30/11/2018.

Official

Recommendation

3.2

Risk/Implication
The use of a spreadsheet, operated
manually by just one person, increases
the risk of erroneous data being uploaded
to Agresso and the consequent
generation of incorrect invoices.

.

3.3

Income Generation & Collection
Adult Social Care Finance routinely
monitor actual income against that
forecast based upon client Financial
Assessment data. Their review of the
position at the end of 2016/17 indicated
that actual income was some £270k less
than expected.

RBK to improve the
effectiveness of income
generation and collection. This
could be achieved through, for
example, the introduction of a
Controcc/Agresso IT interface
for non-residential clients (see
rec 2). Invoice Generation

However, a further comparison, on a
similar basis, at the 2017/18 year end
suggested that some £50k more had been
received than forecast. This variable
discrepancy may be due to the invoice
generation control weaknesses identified
in Finding 2 above; and it is still indicative
of ongoing incomplete or late generation
and collection of income.

above

Management Response

Target Date

The process of invoicing on
actuals using Controcc will
mitigate any overestimates of
income based on commissioned
rather than actual hours. Please
see the response to section 1 for
more details on the project
working on this.

31/3/2019

D18

Finding/Associated Risk

Official

Annex 4
Achieving for Children (AfC) – Summary of Priority 1 recommendations
Audit
Coombe Hill Junior

Audit Year
2018/19

Assurance

Priority 1

Priority 2

Priority 3

Substantial

3

9

1

Three Priority 1 issues were identified in this audit:
 Recruitment checks – A review of 5 staff files identified 1 file with a missing ‘right to work’ check and 1 file where references had not
been received from the two most recent employers and no reason for this had been recorded.
 Procurement – sample testing identified 3 sole traders/individuals paid via invoice where no IR35 check had been completed.
 Lettings- at the time of the review the school did not have a lettings policy or an agreed scale of charges. Sample testing also identified
1 case where no insurance details were held and one case where the let was unpaid.

D19

E1
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee

Appendix E

12th March 2019
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER AND STRATEGY AND INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20
Report by the Head of the South West London Audit Partnership (SWLAP)
Purpose
To set out the proposed Internal Audit Charter and Strategy and Internal Audit Plan for
2019/20 as required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
Recommendation
To Resolve that the IA Charter and Strategy and IA Audit Plan for 2019/20 is approved.

BACKGROUND
1.

The South West London Audit Partnership (SWLAP) is a shared audit service which was
established on 1st June 2012 and includes five local authorities: LB Richmond, LB
Wandsworth (Richmond/Wandsworth Shared Staffing Arrangement), RB Kingston, LB
Sutton and LB Merton. This also includes Achieving for Children (AfC), the community
interest company set up by Richmond and Kingston to deliver their children’s services.

2.

Internal audit work is undertaken by the SWLAP across the 5 Boroughs and as such, any
references to Internal Audit in the Audit Charter and Strategy relates to the SWLAP.

E2

3.

Internal Audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and objective opinion
to the organisation on the control environment, by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving
the organisation’s objectives. It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the
adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and
effective use of resources. The work undertaken by Internal Audit is a key part of the
Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) process and the annual audit opinion forms
part of the AGS.

4.

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require that ” A relevant body must
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management,
control and governance processes taking into account public sector Internal audit standards
and guidance”. Proper practice is defined as being the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) together with an Application Note published by the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA). The PSIA standards came into effect from 1st
April 2013, were last updated in March 2016 and apply to local and central government,
and the NHS.

5.

One of the key requirements of the standards is that the purpose, authority and
responsibility of the internal audit activity must be formally defined in an internal audit
charter. The charter is a formal document which establishes the internal audit activity’s
position within the organisation, authorises access to records, personnel and physical
properties and defines the scope of activities.

6.

The strategy covers how the service will be developed and delivered, together with
the appropriate resourcing; an assessment of the risks which the audit service itself
faces; how internal audit will rely on the assurance provided by other providers, and
how the service will measure its performance and quality assure its services.

7.

The IA Charter and Strategy for 2019/20 is at Annex 1 to this report.

Internal Audit Plan 2019/20
8.

Internal Audit operate a risk based plan, driven in part by the Council’s Annual
Governance Statement (AGS), and established following discussions with Senior
Management, review of the AGS Action Plan and analysis of Departmental and
Corporate Risk Registers. To ensure compliance with PSIAS the risk based plan must
take into account the requirement to produce an annual internal audit opinion and the
wider assurance framework. Consequently, it is not sufficient for the plan to focus
solely on the high risks from the Corporate Risk Register.

9.

To ensure sufficient coverage is delivered across the whole organisation, Internal
Audit combine the corporate assessment of risk with its own assessment of risk (the
Audit Universe) and knowledge of any emerging risks to produce a plan with sufficient
coverage of the Council’s activities. This enables the Head of Internal Audit to provide
the Council with an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control
environment.

10.

Following the above exercise and discussions with DMTs, a plan has been developed
which currently sits at 775.5 days, 78 days more than the 697.5 days commissioned
by the Shared Service Board. The audit plan must be dynamic and will be amended
during the year to reflect changes in the Council’s risks. It will mean however that
some of the audits currently seen as priority will not be delivered but this will be
discussed at quarterly meetings with DMTs and any concerns will be reported back to
Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. The proposed plan is attached at
Annex 2.

E3
11.

Annex 2 includes time allocated for the AfC audit plan (280 days) which is
apportioned equally to both Richmond and Kingston – 140 days each. Consequently,
the Kingston audit plan includes the apportionment for AfC in the total number of days
deliverable (557.5 days for RBK and 140 days for AFC). The AfC plan was presented
to the AfC Audit and Risk Committee in January and is included in Annex 2.

12.

Key to providing an effective service is ensuring that the plan remains dynamic. As
always, the audit plan must remain flexible to accommodate changing management
and organisational priorities during the year and Internal Audit will attend quarterly
DMTs to agree which audits should be prioritised each quarter.

13.

It is intended that changes to the plan will be monitored by the Shared Service Board
at the quarterly performance meetings, with any significant changes reported to the
Strategic Leadership Team and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.

14.

One of the key objectives of the shared audit service is to provide an efficient and
cost-effective service to its partners which is able to add value by ensuring that audit
work concentrates on key areas of risk. Regular review of service delivery and
performance, standardisation of audit methodology, the delivery of shared audits over
more than one partner and a structural review of the service has resulted in a 2%
saving for 2019/20 across the partnership.

E4

Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Action Plan 2018/19
15.

There were a number of key areas identified in the 2018/19 AGS Action Plan where
actions were required to strengthen governance arrangements. Detailed below are
the key themes identified and the audit work undertaken in 2018/19 or included in the
2019/20 audit plan:
 Financial management – A number of audits have been included in the
2019/20 plan which will consider financial risks. This includes an audit to look
at the budget setting process and saving plans.
 Scheme of Delegation and Declarations of interest – As part of the AGS
process, Internal Audit consider the effectiveness of governance
arrangements by comparison with principles contained in the CIPFA/SOLACE
Governance Framework. A number of other audits will support this
assessment and will take account of any emerging governance arrangements.
 Human Resources – The starters and leavers process will be reviewed and
there is an audit on Staff absence in 2019/20.
 Mandatory Training – a Staff training and development audit was undertaken
in 2018/19 and given limited audit assurance. This will be followed up in
2019/20.
 Business Impact Assessments – an audit of Business Continuity
arrangements will be undertaken in 2019/20
 Achieving for Children – an audit is being undertaken in 2018/19 on the
transition from Children’s to Adult Services. This is a joint review with AfC
which considers the risks around cost.
 Risk Management – there will be an overarching review of risk management
arrangements across the 5 Borough partnership to benchmark current activity
and share best practice
 GDPR – An audit on GDPR was undertaken in 2018/19 and was given limited
audit assurance. This will be followed up in 2019/20.

Resource Implications
16.

The number of audit days remains the same as 2018/19 however efficiencies
delivered by the service have resulted in a 2% saving for 2019/20. This is reflected in
a 2% reduction in the charge to RBK for internal audit services.

17.

Currently the audit plan has 78 days more than the Internal Audit service is
commissioned to deliver. There will need to be an ongoing review and assessment of
risks through discussions with DMTs to ensure that the plan is targeted at those areas
of highest risk.

Background papers – held by the Author of this report:
Alix Wilson – Head of the South West London Audit Partnership (SWLAP) Tel: 020 8547 5125,
e-mail: alix.wilson@kingston.gov.uk

Official

E5

Official

E6

Annex 1

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER and STRATEGY
2019-20

Official

E7
This Charter and Strategy sets out the purpose, authority and responsibility of the Council’s
Internal Audit function, in accordance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. It
also sets out how the South West London Audit Partnership (SWLAP) will be developed and
delivered in accordance with these standards.
The Charter and Strategy will be reviewed annually and presented to the Audit Governance
and Standards Committee1 for approval.
PURPOSE
Internal Audit is defined by the Institute of Internal Auditors’ International Professional Practices
Framework as “an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value
and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes”.
In a local authority, internal audit provides independent and objective assurance to the organisation,
its members, the senior management board (Directors Board in Wandsworth and Richmond’s
Shared Staffing Arrangement (SSA), Strategic Leadership Team at Kingston, Corporate
Management Teams at Merton and Sutton), and in particular the Directors of Finance to help them
discharge their responsibilities under s151 of the Local Government Act 1972, relating to the proper
administration of the Council’s financial affairs. . For AfC, internal audit provides assurance to

its Strategic Leadership Team and Audit and Risk Committee.
In addition, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, Regulation 6 (1), requires that:
“'A relevant body must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes taking into account public sector Internal audit
standards and guidance”. Internal Audit proper practices is defined as compliance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards and the CIPFA application note.
Within an organisation, there are 3 lines of defence in place to effect controls. The first line of defence
is the day to day operational controls, the second is the management controls (budget & performance
monitoring, trend analysis) and the third is independent inspection, both internal & external.
Internal audit forms part of the third line of defence and provides assurance on the effectiveness of
governance arrangements, risk management and internal controls, and this includes an assessment
of the effectiveness of the first two lines of defence. Internal audit can place reliance on assurances
provided by third parties, although depending on the source, this may require some independent
validation.
MISSION
The Mission of the SWLAP is to enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based
and objective assurance, advice and insight across the 5 Borough partnership.
AUTHORITY and ACCESS TO RECORDS

References to ‘Audit Committee’ throughout the Charter and Strategy document includes
Standards/General Purposes Committee at LB Merton, the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee at
RB Kingston and Audit Committees at LB Richmond, LB Sutton and AfC.
1

Official

E8
In carrying out their duties and responsibilities, Internal Audit shall be entitled to have full and
unrestricted access to all of the Council’s activities, records, assets, cash, stores, property,
personnel and information (both manual or computerised) which they consider to be necessary to
properly fulfil its function. Internal audit may enter Council property and has unrestricted access to
all locations and officers where necessary on demand and without prior notice. Council staff are
expected to provide every possible assistance to facilitate the progress of audits.
Access rights also apply to other third parties / organisations as permitted through contract and
partnering arrangements.
Internal audit has the authority to obtain such information and explanations as it considers
necessary to fulfil its responsibilities.
Internal audit will consider all requests from the external auditor for access to any information, files
or working papers obtained or prepared during audit work that has been finalised, and which external
audit need to discharge their responsibilities.
All records, documentation and information accessed in the course of undertaking internal audit
activities shall be used solely for that purpose. All internal audit staff are responsible and
accountable for maintaining the confidentiality of the information they receive in the course of their
work. Any information shared will be shared in accordance with the Shared Service Data Sharing
Protocol.
RESPONSIBILITY
The Head of Internal Audit 2is required to provide the Council, via the S151 officer and the Audit
Committee, with an annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control
system for the whole council. To achieve this, the internal audit function has the following
objectives:









To provide a quality, independent and objective audit service that effectively meets the
Council’s needs, adds value, improves processes and helps protect public resources
To provide assurance that the Council’s operations are being conducted in accordance
with legislation, and relevant external and internal regulations, policies and procedures
To provide assurance that significant risks to the Council’s objectives are being managed
To support management through the provision of advice and guidance on the overall
control environment, and where new systems and / or procedures are implemented
To provide independent assurance over the corporate governance arrangements in place
across the Council
To promote an anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption culture within the Council to aid
the prevention and detection of fraud. The corporate fraud function will be undertaken by
the South West London Fraud Partnership (SWLFP) but will be overseen by the Head of
Internal Audit (see Counter Fraud below).
To undertake investigations where there is suspected fraud, bribery and corruption. This
function will be undertaken by the SWLFP but will be overseen by the Head of Internal
Audit.

These audit responsibilities are exercised with the aim of assisting the Council to deliver services in
the most efficient and effective manner possible.

In respect to any references to the Head of Internal Audit within the Charter and Strategy document, the
statutory Head of Internal Audit roles across the 5 Boroughs and AfC will be delivered by the Assistant
Director of Resources (Financial Services) Head, Deputy Head and Audit Manager of the SWLAP.
2

Official

E9
There are inherent limitations in any system of internal control and thus errors or irregularities may
occur and not be detected by internal audit’s work. When carrying out its work, internal audit will
provide management with comments and report on breakdowns, failures or weaknesses of internal
control systems together with recommendations for remedial action. However, internal audit cannot
absolve line management of responsibility for internal controls.
Where appropriate, internal audit will undertake audit or consulting work for the benefit of the
Council and / or organisations that are wholly owned by the Council (such as Achieving for
Children). Where services are provided to bodies separate from the Council, this will be subject to
approval by the Shared Service Board and will be provided under the terms of a Service Level
Agreement (SLA).
Internal audit may also provide assurance to the Council on third party operations where this is
provided for as part of the agreement or contract.
In some instances, internal audit may rely on assurances provided by other providers of assurance
but this will be dependent on the level of associated risk and some degree of independent
verification may be required.
Counter Fraud
Internal Audit’s planned work includes evaluating controls for their effectiveness in preventing or
detecting fraud. Managing the risk of fraud is the responsibility of management however Internal
Audit will consider the risks and exposures which may allow fraud or corruption to occur.
Fraud work is undertaken by the South West London Fraud Partnership which is a five Borough
Shared Service led by the SSA. This service is overseen by the Shared Service Board which includes
the Directors of Finance from each of the partners or their delegated representatives. Work will be
undertaken in accordance with an agreed Fraud Plan which includes a mix of proactive and reactive
fraud work in the following main areas:









Housing tenancy
Internal fraud
Procurement
Business Rates
Council Tax Reduction
Blue Badge
Social Care
Schools

REPORTING
The UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Head of Internal Audit to report directly
to the top of the organisation and those charged with governance. This will be done as follows:





The Audit Charter will be agreed with the senior management team (Directors Board at the
SSA, Corporate Management Teams at Sutton and Merton, and Strategic Leadership Team
at Kingston)
The annual audit plan will be compiled by the Head of Internal Audit following discussions
with senior managers at their Directorate Management Team (DMT) meetings, and sign off
by the senior management team (Directors Board at the SSA, Corporate Management
Teams at Sutton and Merton, and Strategic Leadership Team at Kingston and AfC). It will
then be considered by the Shared Service Board who will agree the number of audit days to
be commissioned each year, and the resource required to deliver this. This will then be
reported to the Audit Committee for approval
The internal audit budget is agreed each year by the Shared Service Board.

Official

E10









Performance against the annual internal audit plan, together with any significant risk
exposures and control issues arising, will be reported to the Shared Service Board on a
quarterly basis. Progress reports will be made to Directorate Management Teams on a
quarterly basis and to Audit Committee at least twice a year.
Changes to the plan during the year will be reported to the Shared Service Board quarterly
and where significant, to Audit Committee
Any significant consultancy activity not already included in the risk based plan and which
might affect the level of assurance work undertaken will be reported to the Audit Committee
The annual opinion report will be presented to Audit Committee annually
Any instances of non-conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards will be
reported to the Shared Service Board and Audit Committee, and will be included in the Head
of Internal Audit’s annual report. Any significant failings will be included in the Annual
Governance Statement
Any external review of the internal audit function will be agreed by, and reported to the
Shared Service Board and the Audit Committee

INDEPENDENCE
The Head of Internal Audit has full and unrestricted access to the following:










The Director of Finance/Resources/Corporate Services/Corporate and Commercial (S151
officer)
Chief Executive
Chair of the Audit Committee (including AfC)
The Council’s Monitoring Officer
The Head of Law and Governance (Kingston)
Head of Finance Operations and Resident Support (Sutton)
The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance (Merton)
The Managing Director and Directors of Children’s Services (AfC)
All members of the senior management team (Directors Board at the SSA, Corporate
Management teams at Sutton and Merton, and Strategic Leadership Team at Kingston and
AfC)

The Head of the SWLAP is line managed by the Assistant Director of Resources (Financial Services)
(SSA), who is responsible for carrying out the Head of Audit’s annual appraisal. The Director of
Corporate and Commercial and / or the Head of Law and Governance, Kingston; Head of Finance
Operations and Resident Support (Sutton) and Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and
Head of Legal Services (Merton), can participate in this appraisal review. The standards require that
the Chief Executive, SSA, reviews, provides feedback and signs off this appraisal, also that the Chair
of the Audit Committee (Richmond and Kingston) must give feedback.
The Deputy Head of the SWLAP who also takes on a statutory Head of Internal Audit role is line
managed by the Head of the SWLAP. As lead for Sutton and Merton, both the Director of Corporate
Services / Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and Head of Legal Services (Merton) and the
Strategic Director Resources and Head of Finance Operations and Resident Support (Sutton) Chair
of Audit and Governance Committee (Sutton) and Chair of Standards and General Purposes
Committee (Merton) can participate in this appraisal review.
The Assistant Director of Resources (Financial Services) is line managed by the Director of
Resources and Assistant Chief Executive who will undertake the annual appraisal and this will be
signed off by the SSA’s Chief Executive.
The Audit Manager who performs the statutory Head of Internal Audit role for AfC is line managed
by the Head of the SWLAP who will undertake the annual appraisal and the Director of Finance and
Resources for AfC can participate in this appraisal review.

Official

E11

All staff (including agency and contract staff) in the Internal Audit Partnership are required to make
annual declarations of any potential conflicts of interest and adhere to confidentiality requirements.
As far as resources permit, auditor rotation will be implemented to ensure auditors’ objectivity is not
impaired.
Internal audit must ensure that it is not involved in the design, installation and operation of controls
so as to compromise its independence and objectivity. Internal Audit will however offer advice on
the design of new internal controls in accordance with best practice. Where Internal Audit do provide
consultancy services, any audit staff involved in this consulting activity will not be involved in the
audit of that area for at least 12 months.
Internal Audit must remain independent of the activities that it audits to enable auditors to make
impartial and effective professional judgements and recommendations. Within the SSA, the service
does have operational responsibilities for Procurement and Pensions (these functions are
overseen by the Assistant Director of Resources (Financial Services) in his role of Statutory Head
of IA for Wandsworth) and for Risk Management and Insurance. Risk Management work is also
undertaken across a number of the other partners. Since these roles may involve establishing and
maintaining the control environment, these functions will be audited independently by Mazars.
Internal auditors have no other operational responsibilities towards the systems and functions
audited.
Internal Audit is involved in the determination of its priorities in consultation with those charged with
governance. The Head of Internal Audit has the freedom to report without fear or favour to all
officers and Members, and particularly to those charged with governance.
Accountability for the response to the advice and recommendations of Internal Audit lies with
management. Managers must either accept and implement the advice and recommendations, or
formally reject them accepting responsibility and accountability for doing so.
EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The external auditors fulfill a statutory duty. Effective collaboration between internal and external
audit will help ensure effective and efficient audit coverage and resolution of issues of mutual
concern. Internal and external audit will meet periodically to discuss respective work plans and
coverage, and potential issues arising from work completed.
DUE PROFESSIONAL CARE
The internal audit function will adhere to / comply with the following:






Institute of Internal Auditor’s International Code of Ethics
Seven Principles of Public Life (Nolan Principles)
UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
All Council policies and procedures
All legislation

All audit work is subject to in house quality control procedures whereby each audit review is subject
to senior peer review. The audit service will be subject to an annual self-assessment to assess its
compliance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and an external review and
assessment at least once every 5 years by a suitably qualified, independent assessor.
The Head of Internal Audit is required to hold a relevant professional qualification (CCAB or CMIIA)
and be suitably experienced. All staff are required to maintain a programme of Continuous

Official

E12
Professional development (CPD) to ensure auditors maintain and enhance their knowledge, skills
and audit competencies.

INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY
Internal Audit Objectives
Internal Audit will provide independent and objective assurance to the organisation, its Members,
senior management and in particular to the Directors of Finance/Resources to support them in
discharging their responsibilities under S151 of the Local Government Act 1972, relating to the
proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs.
It is the Council’s intention to provide a best practice, cost efficient internal audit service through
the SWLAP which adds value to the partner organisation’s it serves.
Internal Audit Remit
The internal audit service is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent and
objective opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes
the achievement of the Council’s objectives. The work undertaken by Internal Audit is a key part of
the Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) process and the annual audit opinion forms
part of the AGS.
Under the direction of a suitably qualified and experienced Head of Internal Audit, Internal Audit
will:
 Provide management and Members with an independent, objective assurance and
consulting activity designed to add value and improve the Council’s operations.
 Assist the Audit Committees to reinforce the importance of effective corporate governance
and ensure internal control improvements are delivered;
 Drive organisational change to improve processes and service performance;
 Work with other internal stakeholders and customers to review and recommend
improvements to internal control and governance arrangements in accordance with
regulatory and statutory requirements;
 Work closely with other assurance providers to share information and provide a value for
money assurance service and;
 Participate in local and national bodies and working groups to influence agendas and
developments within the profession.
Internal Audit will ensure that it is not involved in the design, installation and operation of controls
so as to compromise its independence and objectivity. Internal Audit will however offer advice on
the design of new internal controls in accordance with best practice. This type of work is key for
our service in ensuring that it works closely with the partner organisations to provide proactive
advice and guidance. The ability to bring in knowledge and experience from our other partners is
an important way for the service to add value.
Service delivery
The Internal Audit service will be delivered by the South West London Audit Partnership (SWLAP)
which is the 5 borough shared internal audit service hosted by the SSA providing internal audit
services to LB Wandsworth, LB Richmond, RB Kingston, LB Merton and LB Sutton. This
relationship is governed in law through a formal Collaboration Agreement. The arrangement also
includes the provision of Internal Audit to Achieving for Children (AfC), the community interest
company created by LB Richmond and RB Kingston to provide their children’s services.

Official

E13
The SWLAP is an in-house team with contract auditors or agency staff used as required to
supplement the in house skills and experience. The SWLAP are part of the Croydon Framework
contract with Mazars allowing the service to buy in additional audit resource and expertise.
One of the key objectives of the shared service is the provision of an efficient and cost-effective
service to its partners. This is achieved through the review and standardization of audit
methodology which takes on board best practice, ensuring staff are properly trained and
developed, developing and delivering shared audits across more than one partner and reviewing
and restructuring the service where needed to drive out cost savings. Key objectives and
performance targets are included within the annual Service Plan.
Quarterly performance reports to the Shared Service Board will provide updates on any staffing
changes, issues such as sickness absence levels and whether there is any surplus or shortfall in
resources (significant issues will be reported to the Audit Committee at LB Wandsworth, Audit and
Risk Committee at AfC, Audit and Governance Committee at LB Sutton, Audit and Standards
Committee at LB Richmond, Standards and General Purposes Committee at LB Merton and Audit,
Governance and Standards Committee at RB Kingston).
The statutory Head of Internal Audit roles across the 5 Borough’s will be undertaken by the
Assistant Director of Resources (Financial Services), Head, Deputy Head and Audit Manager of
the SWLAP. Unless amended and agreed by the Shared Service Board, the Head of the SWLAP
will take the lead as the statutory Head of Internal Audit for LB Richmond and RB Kingston. The
Deputy Head of the SWLAP will take the lead as statutory Head of Internal Audit for LB Merton and
LB Sutton. The Assistant Director of Resources (Financial Services) will take the lead as the
statutory Head of Internal Audit for LB Wandsworth and the Audit Manager for the SWLAP will
fulfill this role for AfC. All of these officers will support each other in the delivery of these roles.
The Corporate Fraud service will be delivered by the South West London Fraud Partnership, led by
the SSA. This is a shared service which is overseen by the Shared Service Board.
Key Performance Targets
Key Performance Targets are established and monitored on a quarterly basis by the Shared
Service Board. A Service Plan and Risk Register have also been established and are reported to,
and monitored by the Shared Service Board.
Bi-monthly reports on corporate fraud work undertaken by the SWLFP will be provided to the Head
of Internal Audit and 6 monthly reports made to Audit Committee (Standards and General
Purposes committee).
Audit Planning
The Head of Audit has responsibility for preparing a balanced internal audit plan, ensuring audit
maintains its independence, ensuring independence and sufficient coverage to support the annual
opinion.
Each year, an audit plan will be discussed and agreed by the respective Directors, Senior
Leadership Teams and Audit Committees which will be based on the following :







Issues identified in the Annual Governance Statement and Action Plan
Discussions with the Council’s Departmental Management teams (DMT).
Discussions with Council’s Corporate Management teams (CMT) if required
Discussions with the Shared Service Board.
Review of Corporate and Service Risk Registers
Outputs from other assurance providers

Official

E14



Outputs from previous audit or fraud assignments
Requirements as agreed with External Audit

The Head of Internal Audit will ensure attendance at all DMT meetings as part of the annual
planning process to ensure that management views and suggestions are taken into account when
producing the audit plan. Key to ensuring that the service adds value is maintaining a dynamic
audit plan which responds to changes in the organisation’s risk profile. This is managed through
quarterly reporting and attendance at DMT meetings during the year to discuss the audit plan and
departmental risks.
The Internal Audit Plans are based on the following:

















Governance Arrangements: Internal Audit have a key role in assessing the effectiveness
of governance arrangements by comparison with principles contained in the
CIPFA/SOLACE Governance Framework. A number of audits will support this assessment
and will take account of any emerging governance arrangements.
Transformation: Considering the significant financial challenges facing the public sector
and the all the council's ambitions, the annual audit plan will need to be flexible enough to
respond to emerging issues and risks from change.
Risk Based Systems Audit: Audits of systems, processes or tasks where the internal
controls are identified, evaluated and confirmed through a risk assessment process. The
internal controls depending on the risk assessment are tested to confirm that they operating
correctly. The selection of work in this category is driven by the AGS, Corporate Risk
Registers, Departments’ own risk processes and will increasingly include work in areas
where the Council services are delivered in partnership with other organisations.
Value for money: This is an integral part of our risk-based audit approach, in particular
being alert to opportunities and reporting issues and agreed management actions
Key Financial Systems: The effectiveness of controls and management of risks within key
financial systems remain a core part of our audit work. We continue to develop our audit
approach to give greater assurance.
Probity Audit (schools and other establishments): Audit of a discrete unit. Compliance
with legislation, regulation, policies, procedures or best practice is confirmed. For schools
this includes assessment against the Schools Financial Value Standard.
Computer Audit: Information technology is fundamental to the delivery of all the councils
services and is an area of rapid change. Due to this high risk, providing assurance on the
adequacy of electronic systems and controls is a key part of our Annual audit plan.
Contract Audit: Changing approaches to procurement and contract management are a
key part of delivering improved services. This also brings additional inherent risks that need
to be managed. Audits of the procedures and processes for the letting and monitoring of
contracts, including reviews of completed and current contracts.
Special Projects: Specific areas of Council business which may be subject to change
through the development and implementation of new systems, or delivery models, where
poor value for money or failing service standards have been identified or where there are
new or significant risks will be targeted for review as part of the audit planning process.
Risk Management: Risk management support is provided to some of the partners to
facilitate the review and implementation of risk management strategies and to take the lead
in compiling the Annual Governance Statement. Where this function is provided by the
SWLAP, an independent review is undertaken by the Internal Audit contractor under the
Croydon Framework contract to ensure independence. This review will assess the risk
management arrangements, including risk strategy, adequacy of strategic and operational
risk registers and the extent to which it is embedded.
Partnerships: Councils are increasingly operating and delivering services jointly through
partnerships. This brings risks and opportunities to councils and the delivery of services.
We will review key partnerships.

Official

E15






Provision of advice and support: Increasingly Internal Audit are involved in providing
advice and support on an ad hoc basis. This may involve the provision of general advice on
risks and controls or more detailed work with specific business areas where there are
significant changes to systems and processes or decisions which require independent due
diligence. The Heads of Audit also sit on boards, such as Information governance boards
and working groups; corporate governance and risk management.
Fraud, Corruption and Financial Irregularities: The SWLFP will investigate fraud and
irregularity arising during the year and may work alongside officers from the SLWAP on
cases particularly where there are significant control issues requiring audit and fraud input.
The audit plan will also include a programme of pro-active fraud checks.
Follow up work: Follow up work on outstanding audit recommendations will be regularly
undertaken. Progress will be reported to Audit Committee and where progress is
unsatisfactory or management fail to provide a satisfactory response to follow up requests
this will be reported to the relevant Assistant Director, Director or Audit Committee where
required.

Policies and Procedures
All audit work will be undertaken in accordance with Council regulations and professional
standards. There is an Audit Manual and Internal Audit Protocol which sets out the audit process
for staff to adhere to, including quality control procedures.
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme
The Head of the South West London Audit Partnership continuously reviews the quality and
effectiveness of all aspects of the Internal Audit service. This includes:
 Establishing procedures that comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
 Maintaining a professional audit team with sufficient knowledge, skills and experience to
carry out the Audit Plan. This includes undertaking appraisals and ensuring that training
needs are identified and addressed
 Undertaking, reviewing and acting on client satisfaction surveys and feedback
 Reviewing audit methodology and benchmarking against best practice.
 Independent review of all audit assignments undertaken.
In line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, Internal Audit has a quality and
improvement programme in place. The results of the quality and assurance programme and
progress against any improvement plans will be reported in the Annual reports to each Borough’s
Audit Committees.

Official

E16
ANNEX 2

Internal Audit Plan 2019/20
Audit Area
Corporate / Cross Cutting
Income Collection
Contracts
Corporate and Commercial
Accounts Payable
Accounts Receivable
Housing Rents
Pension Administration
Shared iTrent audit
Budget setting and Savings Plans
Staff Absence
Facilities Management (including premises Health and
Safety)
Project Management
South London Waste Partnership – Disposal
contracts*
Starters and Leavers
Agresso controls*
Adult Services
Maximising Independence
Direct Payments (Personal Budgets)
Mental Health
Appointeeships and Deputyships
Homecare
Quality Framework
Learning Difficulties
Debt Recovery
Communities
Business Continuity
Public Health Contracts
Digital Transformation
FOIs and SARs
Network Security *
PCI Compliance*
Planning Applications*
CRM Project Management (Advisory)
iTrent application
Emergency Planning
Insurance
Growth
Income
Regeneration
Section 106 and CIL

Days
20
30
50
15
15
12
12
8
15
10
15
15
7
10
10
144
15
12
12
12
15
12
12
12
102
12
15
15
12
7.5
7.5
6
2.5
6
12
10
105.5
15
15
12

Official

E17
39
Risk Management & Assurance Framework
Annual Governance Statement
Risk Management review*
Other work
Completion of old year work
Advice and Information
Proactive & Realtime Auditing
High Earners and Expenses
Duplicate Payment Testing
Audit management
Fraud Management and reactive work
Audit Committee and DMT Reporting/ Attendance
Audit Planning / Monitoring

20
10
30
60
20
80
10
10
20
10
25
15
50

Follow up and Contingency
Follow up work
Contingency

15
15

Achieving For Children
TOTAL KINGSTON
*joint audits

140
775.5

Official

E18
Achieving for Children Internal Audit Plan 2019/20
Audit Area
Accounts Receivable
Children’s Centres

Days
8
12

Commissioning
Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity
Early Years Annual Compliance Check (op1)
Fostering*
Grant Certification work (op1)
Liquid Logic
Recoupment
Risk Management
Savings Plans
School Planning (including SEND provision)
Schools (op1)
SEND Transport*
SEND Transformation
Short Breaks
Strengthening Families Grant (op1)

10
12
12
12
4
10
8
10
10
10
80
12
12
10

Follow up work
Contingency
Management
Total Days

8
10
20
280

10

Op1 – audits only looking at Richmond and Kingston
* - audits requiring sign off from Windsor and Maidenhead, also covering Richmond and
Kingston

